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CHaiRMan’s stateMent 

Dear Shareholder,

2013 has been a challenging year for DDD Group 
plc (DDD). Revenues from license fees and royalties 
in 2013 amounted to $3.4 million with 99% gross 
margins. Despite the declining software shipments in 
the PC market, in June the Group agreed terms for an 
extension to the license agreement with Samsung for 
their 3D TV products through to December 2015. By 
the end of the year a total of 38 million products had 
been shipped with DDD’s TriDef technology installed. 
Cash and receivables at the end of the year were $3.2 
million and the Group has no debt.

As the research and development work in emerging 2D 
technology areas that commenced in mid-2011 began to 
deliver results, DDD entered into a strategic investment 
and collaboration agreement with InterDigital, Inc in 
September. The investment provided over $0.9 million 
of cash for the Company and, importantly, enabled 
new jointly developed 2D video encoding technologies 
to be demonstrated at the International CES show in 
Las Vegas held in January of this year and the following 
month at Mobile World Congress.

The challenge in 2013 has been the extent of the fall 
in demand for the Group’s 2D to 3D conversion PC 
software as the global market for PCs continued to 
decline combined with the relatively slow introduction 
of tablets and mobile phones with glasses-free 3D 
capability. These factors created a difficult environment 
in which the Group operates.

The Group continues to grow the Yabazam! 3D movie 
streaming service and the content library has doubled 
during the year to 123 titles. In recognition of the 
number of users in emerging markets such as Russia, 
Brazil and Poland, a multi-language version of the app 
was recently introduced on LG and Samsung Smart 
TVs. The Group has also expanded the footprint of the 
app to include the latest Android™ glasses-free 3D 
tablets and Panasonic’s range of 3D Smart TVs.

The Group has appointed IP Navigation Group to 
assist in securing licenses for the use of the Group’s 
international patent library in the 3D consumer market 
and the 3D professional services market.

Research and Development initiatives continue to bear 
fruit, both in 3D and non-3D applications. In the 3D 
market, the Group has developed Smart TV solutions 
that deliver automatic 2D to 3D conversion for video and 
games as a downloadable software app. These new 
apps offer a cost effective, higher quality alternative to 
the custom 3D conversion chips and can be deployed 
to existing Smart TVs from app stores, yielding a more 
flexible, lower risk approach for 3D TV manufacturers to 
deploy the Group’s TriDef solutions.

The Group has also reached beyond the niche of 3D 
to deliver innovative solutions for larger 2D markets, 
including streaming movies and video conferencing. 
Drawing on the extensive expertise in depth processing, 
these new solutions improve picture quality and reduce 
bandwidth for a variety of devices ranging from Smart 
TVs to tablets and smartphones.

These new products have resulted in several new patent 
applications, expanding the scope of the Group’s 
intellectual property portfolio which is the core of the 
Group’s licensing business.

Although 2013 was a difficult year for DDD, it has not 
resulted in any lack of resolve and hard work from all 
those employed in the business, many of whom have 
worked at DDD for a decade or more. My thanks and 
appreciation go to all of the DDD team and to my fellow 
directors for the huge effort that has been contributed 
by everybody over this last year. I would like to take this 
opportunity to extend special thanks to Warren Littlefield 
who has recently announced that he will be retiring from 
the DDD board this month. Warren’s contributions and 
support over the last 13 years have been invaluable and 
we wish him success in all of his future endeavours.

In closing, I remain confident that due to the dedication 
of everyone at DDD, the Group will soon see a return 
to the growth path that we have seen in recent years.

Yours sincerely

Nicholas Brigstocke,
Chairman
DDD Group plc
14 April 2014
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stRateGiC  RePoRt

DDD Overview
DDD Group is a leading developer and licensor of 
intellectual property in the advanced imaging market for 
consumer entertainment products. The Group initially 
focused on delivering patent-protected solutions for 
the 3D consumer market where its TriDef® 3D content 
technologies have been shipped in 38 million televisions, 
Blu-ray players, personal computers, smartphones and 
tablets. Licensees include leading consumer electronic 
brands such as Samsung Electronics, LG Electronics, 
Sony Corporation and Lenovo.

Following the emergence of the 3D consumer market 
in early 2010, the Group established a successful 
technology licensing business that yields strong gross 
profit margins. The majority of the licensees ship the 
Group’s automatic 2D to 3D conversion solutions with 
their 3D consumer products that ensure that a wide 
selection of games, video and photo content can be 
viewed in 3D, even though they were not specially made 
in 3D. The 2D to 3D conversion products are available 
in a range of implementations that suit the customer’s 
specific requirements, ranging from firmware for 
manufacturers of special 2D to 3D conversion chips, 
to Windows PC software and most recently, Android 
software for the latest Smart TVs and glasses-free 3D 
tablets.

Having established its TriDef brand and reputation in the 
niche 3D market, the Group has begun to broaden its 
development and licensing activities to address much 
larger non-niche opportunities, in particular streaming 
media for conventional 2D applications including 
video conferencing and video streaming services. 
These new technologies deliver enhanced features, 
bandwidth savings and improved picture quality for 

organizations that stream video content to or between 
consumers. Following the development of the first of 
these technologies in early 2013, the Group secured 
the backing of InterDigital Communications Corporation 
(NASDAQ:IDCC), a $1Bn+ mobile IP licensing specialist, 
which acquired 4.9% of DDD in a private placing. 
Allied to the private placing is a joint development 
agreement that involves combining the Group’s 
video pre-processing technologies with InterDigital’s 
adaptive streaming technology for commercialisation 
in various markets from 2014 onwards, targeted at 
potential customers in the streaming movie and video 
conferencing markets.

Value proposition
DDD’s approach is to develop solutions that are primarily 
based on one or more patents developed by the Group 
and protected in key territories in North America, Asia 
and Europe. As a result of the early patents developed 
by the Group, the Group has world leading expertise 
in the techniques involved in understanding the 
dimensional depth structure of otherwise flat 2D images. 
This expertise has been packaged into solutions for 
two key markets: automatic 2D to 3D conversion and 
efficient encoding of 2D streaming video. Each of these 
markets, business models, risks and business updates 
are presented in the Business Review of Operations 
section of this Strategic Report.

Key Performance Indicators
The key performance indicators used in the business 
are summarised below. The performance of the 
business in the terms of these indicators is considered 
throughout this Strategic Report section of the Annual 
Report and Accounts.

2013 2012

New/renewal 3D license agreements signed in the year 4 7

Active 3D licensees during the period 15 16

3D units shipped with technology 11,242,178 15,002,584

Gross margin on continuing operations 99% 97%

OEM royalty revenue ($’000’s) 3,132 8,339

Adjusted EBITDA* (511) 3,213

Adjusted (Loss)/profit before taxation from continuing operations* ($’000’s) (1,562) 2,047

Working capital balance ($’000’s) 2,246 3,981

Average monthly operating expenditure rate ** - ($’000’s) 496 570

* Adjusted before share based remuneration expenses of $426,000 (2012: $733,000).
**  Operating expenses before capitalisation of development costs as an average over the financial year. Does not include 

realised foreign exchange (FX) gains/losses.
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Financ ia l  Rev iew
Revenues for the year ended 31 December 2013 
were $3,400,000 (2012: $8,620,000), a decrease of 
61%. The decrease was primarily due to a decline in 
shipments from the 3D PC market.

TriDef technology royalty revenues (including direct to 
consumer software sales) decreased to $3,335,000 
(2012: $8,549,000) as shipments across TV, PC and 
mobile declined from 15 million to 11.2 million units. 
The mix of unit shipments by volume was: 97.1% TV, 
2.7% PC and 0.2% mobile devices (2012: 82% TV, 
16% PC, 2% mobile). Royalties from OEM agreements 
decreased to $3,132,000 (2011: $8,339,000) while 
software licensing sales were $203,000 (2012: 
$210,000) for the year.

Other licensing royalty revenues were $51,000 (2012: 
$64,000). This includes royalties received from IP 
patent licensing as well as royalties from other license 
agreements which are non-royalty based. Other 
revenues were $14,000 (2012: $7,000).

Gross profit decreased by 60% to $3,361,000 (2012: 
$8,376,000) and gross margin increased to 99% (2012: 
97%) as a result of the continued shift in revenue mix 
towards higher margin royalties.

Administration expenses decreased 18% to $4,287,000 
(2012: $5,242,000) due to a reduction in headcount 
related to PC market activities and the weakening of 
the Australian Dollar which represents approximately 
50% of the expense base by virtue of the Australian 
operation.

Other income increased to $415,000 (2012: $79,000). 
The majority of other income is related to the Australian 
R&D incentive program which was unavailable to the 
Group in 2012 due to the timing of incentive program 
rule changes.

The non-cash share-based incentive cost decreased to 
$426,000 (2012: $733,000).

Adjusted Group loss before tax and share-based 
incentive costs was $1,562,000 (2012: profit 
$2,047,000). The reported pre-tax loss was $1,988,000 
(2012: profit $1,314,000).

The total taxation charge was $581,000 (2012: 
$550,000). Taxation includes foreign withholding taxes 
withheld at source as well as local sales taxes, adjusted 
by the movement in the Deferred Tax Asset and Liability 
accounts. Note 7 to the Consolidated Group Financials 
describe this in more detail.

The Group recorded a loss per share during the year of 
1.86 cents (2012: profit 0.57 cents).

Net cash used by operating activities was $179,000 
(2012: generation of $2,217,000). Capitalised 
expenditure was $1,897,000 (2012: $1,873,000). This 

cash flow was supplemented by $1,281,000 of net 
proceeds raised from the issue of new shares through 
employee stock option exercises during the year and 
a new 4.9% equity owner (2012: $72,000), resulting 
in cash of $2,661,000 at the end of 2013 (2012: 
$3,595,000).

Key risk analysis:
The Directors’ financial risk management objective 
is to maximise financial assets and minimise financial 
liabilities whilst not engaging in speculation. The 
Directors have ensured that the Group has effective 
systems for managing and mitigating significant risks, 
which incorporate performance management systems 
and appropriate remuneration incentives where relevant. 
In identifying and assessing these risks, the Directors 
consider the Group’s short and long-term value, as well 
as the opportunities to enhance value that may arise 
from an appropriate response to such a risk.

The Group conducts banking activities in multiple 
jurisdictions, including Australia, the US and the UK, 
relevant to the business requirements. Risks surrounding 
banking include bank solvency, liquidity of investments, 
interest rates earned, and currency fluctuation risk. To 
mitigate these risks, the Group routinely reviews the 
banking relationships to ensure that all deposits are 
held with AA+ rated banking institutions and are insured 
where available. Cash balances are held in the currency 
of anticipated expenditure wherever possible to reduce 
the foreign exchange risk. Finally, interest rates and 
withdrawal limits are reviewed regularly to protect the 
Group and secure the best returns and availability of 
cash deposits. Given that the Group does not currently 
have any debt, interest rates on debt and related 
financial covenants are not presently applicable.

Additionally, the financial reporting currency for 
presentational purposes is the US dollar. A change was 
made to this currency in 2011 given that the majority of 
customer agreements are negotiated in US dollars. This 
mitigates the currency risk on revenue for the Group. 
Another main financial risk in this area is related to the 
extension of credit to customers. The Group actively 
reviews and approves the terms of, and parties to, 
significant commercial contracts where payment is not 
anticipated in advance.

Access to sufficient capital is a risk of the Group. The 
Group continues to make losses in various entities 
which could require it to secure further financing/
funding for its operations through loans or equity-based 
instruments should commercial agreements not provide 
sufficient cash flow. The Directors periodically review 
business and cash flow models as well as the most 
suitable instruments for funding should the need arise.
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Remaining financial risk areas and a sensitivity analysis 
are discussed more fully in Note 14 of the Consolidated 
Group Financials.

Operationally, the key risk for the Group lies in the 
timing of new license agreements, non-renewal 
of license agreements, timing and the volume of 
licensee product shipments incorporating the Group’s 
technology, performance of the markets in which the 
Group’s licensees operate and potential changes in 
customer relationships that could adversely impact the 
operating revenue. The Group seeks to reduce this 
risk by increasing the number of licensees who utilise 
the Group’s technology, developing new technologies 
that can be licensed to different groups of licensees 
operating in diverse markets as well as widening the 
number of discrete market segments where potential 
licensees do business.

A second risk is the possibility that the proprietary rights 
underlying the Group’s technologies will be challenged, 
invalidated, circumvented or used without the Group’s 

authorisation. The Group files patents and trademarks 
as appropriate to protect its intellectual property. 
The Group also monitors competitive technologies 
promoted by third parties and develops strategies for 
potential enforcement actions. As discussed in this 
report, the Group has been considering multiple options 
to utilise third parties to assist in negotiations to resolve 
unlicensed patent use and reached an agreement with 
a specialist advisory partner in early 2014.

As new technologies are developed that allow 
the Group to widen the licensee base into new or 
emerging markets, the third risk is that the Group will 
not be successful in securing licensees for these new 
technologies. The Group conducts regular forward 
planning meetings to ensure that where possible, these 
new technologies are developed to meet requirements 
that are present in the target markets.

Various risks specifically related to the business areas, 
including competitive risks, are further detailed in the 
following section.

On the left: Hampoo’s 10.1” 3D tablet displaying a scene from Rally Maroc by concon3D 
On the right: Gadmei’s 8” 3D tablet displaying a scene from Wallflower Tango by  

Filmakademie Baden-Württemberg, available on Yabazam

stRateGiC  RePoRt con t inued
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Bus iness  Rev iew o f  opera t ions

3D teCHnoLoGY L iCensinG BUsiness

AutomAt ic  2D to 3D convers ion
This ability to create depth information from a 2D 
image was initially packaged as technology solutions 
for licensing into the market for consumer 3D displays, 
including televisions, personal computers, smartphones 
and tablets. The value proposition is simple as there 
is insufficient 3D content from film studios and from 
television production companies to support a 24 hour/
day, seven day/week 3D TV channel, therefore having 
the capability to automatically convert existing 2D TV 
shows, movies and games in the home is an important 
feature for consumer electronics manufacturers and 
consumers alike. For the consumer, it ensures that a 
diverse range of 3D content is instantly accessible as 
soon as they purchase their 3D product and for the 
consumer electronics manufacturer, the inclusion of 
this capability overcomes the consumers concern over 
lack of available 3D content when purchasing their 3D 
product.

Addressable market:
Of the markets that the Group is currently active in, 
the market for 3D consumer devices is the most 
mature. DisplaySearch, a leading market research firm 
for the consumer electronics space, reports that 3D 
TV shipments rose 8.3% to 45 million units in 2013, 
representing 20.6% of all TVs produced during 2013. 
DisplaySearch’s market research suggests that 3D 
TV production will continue to grow, as Chinese TV 
manufacturers aggressively expand their 3D model 
ranges. In addition to licensing the core 2D to 3D 
conversion technology to TV chip makers, the Group 
has recently released its game and video 3D conversion 
solutions as downloadable software apps, targeted at 
the growing market for Smart TVs, particularly in China.

The market for 3D smartphones and tablets is the next 
emerging consumer market, where the viewer is able 
to see the 3D image without the need for any special 
viewing glasses. Presently the growth is constrained 
by the availability of the new ‘glasses-free’ 3D displays 
however DisplaySearch forecasts that this market will 
grow to approximately 15 million units per year by 2017. 
The majority of the Group’s new licensees are active in 
the emerging 3D tablet market. The 3D PC market is 
presently declining as a result of the general slow down 
in sales of PCs as consumers switch to tablet devices. 
While the Group has enjoyed a strong market share in 
the PC segment during 2009-2013 with over 3.6 million 
copies of its software shipped by OEMs, absent a 
turnaround in the fortunes of the PC market in general, 
the Group does not expect that the 3D PC market will 

contribute materially to future 3D technology licensing 
revenues.

Business Model
DDD’s TriDef 2D to 3D conversion software business 
model currently includes:

• the licensing of the TriDef 3D software to Original 
Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) for TV, PC, 
monitor, mobile and tablet markets yielding license 
fees (licensing revenue) and per unit royalties 
(royalty revenue);

• the sale of TriDef 3D software directly to end users 
from the Group’s website yielding per unit license 
fees (software revenue); and

• one time development fees (consulting 
revenue) based on DDD’s assistance in integrating 
the TriDef 3D firmware or software with the 
licensee’s new 3D products.

Specific Risks
Competitive risk exists in the market as follows:

• unlicensed use of the Group’s intellectual property;
• alternative 2D to 3D conversion methods which 

have been used by some manufacturers that yield 
lower quality visual results;

• license agreement renewal terms and non-
renewals; and

•  changes in licensee production due to economic 
conditions or market demand for 3D products.

The Group has partnered with a suitable intellectual 
property licensing specialist in order to address 
unlicensed claim use. The recently introduced Smart 
TV software apps were developed in response to the 
lower cost chip solutions developed by Asia-based chip 
vendors. The Smart TV apps offer a lower risk, higher 
quality visual result that can be marketed as a cost 
effective alternative to the lower cost conversion chips. 
Where possible the Group seeks to renew license 
agreements on terms that are as close to the original 
license agreement terms as is possible. In certain 
cases, since the royalties adjust based on cumulative 
shipment of the Group’s technologies by the licensee, 
the per unit royalties reduce as production increases. 
The Group monitors feedback from its licensees as 
well as from independent market research firms and 
adjusts its product development strategies and support 
resources in line with developing market trends.
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PAtent L icens ing
To date, the majority of the Group’s licensing revenue 
has been derived from the 2D to 3D conversion 
technology licensing program, whereby the Group 
provides a software application or reference design 
to the licensee for inclusion with the licensee’s 3D 
products. During 2013, the Group expanded the scope 
of its patent license agreement with Samsung that allows 
Samsung to undertake offline 2D to 3D conversion of 
cinematic content using the patent claims owned by 
DDD. Unlike a technology license, the patent license 
does not require any software or reference design to be 
provided by DDD to the licensee since the licensee has 
the skills to develop its own implementation.

With over 38 million 3D consumer products that 
include the Group’s TriDef 3D technologies shipped 
by leading manufacturers since early 2010, there 
is now an established value for the internationally 
registered patent claims on which DDD’s solutions 
have been built. As new revenue streams continue to 
be developed, the Group expects that patent licensing 
revenue will grow as the Group establishes its patent 
rights with prospective licensees. The patent licensing 
program also has the potential to create license and 
royalty revenue from applications in 3D markets that are 
outside the scope of the current technology licensing 
program. The Group appointed IP Navigation Group 
as its exclusive patent licensing advisor in March 
2014. IP Navigation Group will work closely with the 
Group to secure patent licensees in the consumer and 
professional 3D markets.

Business Model
DDD’s patent licensing business model currently 
includes:

• the licensing of the patent rights to appropriate 
vendors to utilise the claims of the patents in 
various business processes yielding license fees 
(licensing revenue) or per minute royalties 
(non-unit based royalty revenue).

Specific Risks
Competitive risk exists in the market as follows:

• the Group’s intellectual property advisory partner 
may be unsuccessful in assisting in the expansion 
of the licensing program; and

• The financial cost of asserting the patent rights by 
litigation may be too significant for the Group to 
bear when compared to the value of the resulting 
license fee.

The Group has thoroughly investigated the available 
options for licensing its patent rights and plans to 
implement an approach that maximizes the success 
of the program while minimizing the financial risks to 
the Group. Through partnering with an established 
intellectual property licensing specialist, the Group is 
able to take advantage of industry best practices when 
seeking licenses. The pre-existing technology licensing 
royalties provide an established value by which 
license fees can be calculated, mitigating the risk that 
prospective licensees will propose unrealistically low 
licensing terms.

Looking forward – 3D Technology Market Update
During 2013, the Group continued to realise the 
majority of its revenues from technology licenses 
in the 3D market. During the year, another TV chip 
licensee completed the development of a 3D TV chip 
incorporating the Group’s technologies and began 
marketing the chip to customers in early 2014. It is 
uncertain whether the chipmaker will secure customers 
for these new chipsets however it could present 
additional royalty contribution for the recently introduced 
HD chip.

The design of video processing chips for TVs continues 
to evolve with the latest chips including dual and 
quad core ARM-based processors. This evolution has 
allowed the Group to develop software implementations 
of the TriDef 3D game and video conversion features 
for these next generation Smart TVs. During 2013, the 
Group completed development of Android versions 
of these Smart TV apps that are targeted at certain 
upcoming Smart TV platforms from vendors in China. 
The software approach is expected to reduce delivery 
times (compared to conventional chip development 
projects) and reduce technical risk and cost for OEM 
licensees while delivering a higher quality 3D image 
than competitive solutions.

In the PC market, the Group will continue to maintain 
software and game support for the OEM and consumer 
market and will continue to secure new licensees 
provided that the market remains sustainable.

In the mobile device and tablet market, the Group 
completed development of the TriDef 3D gaming and 
TriDef 3D gallery applications for Android devices. The 
new applications will include a promotional version 
which will be made available for free in the Google Play 
app store to introduce the software at no risk for new 
users. A paid upgrade option is available that enables a 
fully featured upgrade version of the software for users 
who wish to use the software.

stRateGiC  RePoRt con t inued
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otHeR BUsiness aReas

3D content PubL ish ing –  “YAbAzAm”
The technology licensing business represents an 
opportunity to generate royalty income for each 
device produced that incorporates the Group’s TriDef 
3D technologies. In response to requests from OEM 
customers seeking original 3D content to include with 
their 3D devices, the Group launched Yabazam!®, an 
online 3D portal offering a variety of high definition 
originally made 3D movie titles that can be streamed 
directly over-the-top to 3D capable Smart TVs and 
mobile devices.

Additionally, promotional Yabazam content has been 
incorporated into the TriDef PC software, and, in some 
instances, Yabazam icons have been preloaded on 3D 
PC products, which allow users quick access to visit 
the site and view the range of content available.

The content library of originally made 3D movies 
doubled in size during 2013 to a total of 123 titles from 
43 producers around the world. The Yabazam Smart 
TV app has been expanded to reach 17 countries and 
language packs for six of the most popular countries 
were released in early 2014. US Smart TV users have 
access to the service as a subscription service for $9.99 
per month while international customers can download 
individual titles on a video-on-demand basis. The 
service was expanded to include Panasonic’s range of 
3D TVs in March 2014. Yabazam is also available in the 
Google Play store for customers with Android-based 
3D tablets.

Addressable Market
As the installed base of 3D televisions and mobile 
devices continues to grow, the Group is broadening the 
reach of the Yabazam 3D movie streaming service. Data 
from DisplaySearch indicates that Samsung and LG 
represented just over 50% of all 3D TVs shipped during 
2013, therefore the Group’s Yabazam Smart TV app is 
already available to half of the 3D Smart TVs shipped 
annually. Industry research suggests that around 430 
million 3D capable TVs, PCs, Monitors and Tablets will 
be in living rooms worldwide by the end of 2016, most 
of which will have Wi-fi connectivity or Smart TV internet 
capabilities. The US market represents approximately 
18% of the worldwide market.

Business Model
DDD’s content publishing business model currently 
includes:

• per paid download, single use rental or 
monthly subscription revenue (other revenue) 
based on end users of Smart TVs, PCs and other 

TriDef 3D equipped devices visiting the Yabazam 
content portal and completing paid access of the 
available content;

• the licensing of the Yabazam promotional content 
to TriDef 3D technology licensees by offering 
technology licensing incentives (marketing 
expense - other) to the licensees to include the 
Yabazam content (advertising royalty revenue – 
licensing); and

• the acquisition of originally made 3D content for 
delivery to end users of 3D products in the TV, PC 
and mobile markets yielding per disc/embedded 
content revenue shares (other revenue).

Specific Risks
Competitive risk exists in the market as follows:

• content producers who distribute their content 
via Yabazam may not renew their distribution 
agreements or may not renew on similar 
commercial terms;

• the cost of acquiring premium 3D content from 
movie studios may outweigh the subsequent return 
from users of the Yabazam service, constraining 
the range of available titles;

• competitive streaming services may seek to offer 
more favorable terms to the content licensees, 
reducing the attractiveness of the Yabazam 
proposition to content owners; and

• viewers and subscribers may lose interest in the 
service if the Group is unable to secure a regular 
supply of new content to keep the library up to 
date.

The Group seeks to enter into multi-year license 
agreements with content owners and seeks to renew 
the licenses on similar terms to those in the original 
license. The Group continually evaluates the content 
available on alternative 3D services to ensure that the 
Yabazam offering remains competitively priced and 
contains unique content that viewers cannot readily 
find elsewhere. The Group regularly reviews the terms 
from premium 3D content sources to determine when 
it will become viable for the Group to pay minimum 
guarantees that can be recovered from paid downloads 
during the applicable distribution windows. The Group 
actively participates in international 3D film events 
to ensure that a continual supply of new 3D content 
becomes available which are appealing to end users in 
different countries where the service is available.
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 Look ing to  the  Fu tu re

eMeRGinG 2D teCHnoLoGY L iCensinG BUsiness

Since inception, the Group’s technical team has 
developed world-class expertise in the efficient 
extraction and processing of depth from a two 
dimensional image. The primary focus of the Group has 
been to develop a series of patents and technologies 
based on this expertise that delivered practical 
solutions for the stereoscopic 3D industry. During 2011, 
the Group began to examine how its depth extraction 
expertise could be re-packaged to provide innovative 
solutions for markets beyond the niche stereoscopic 3D 
market.

efficient encoDing of 2D streAming viDeo
The first of the new patents created by the team 
were filed in early 2013 and relate to how the depth 
information of the 2D scene can be used to more 
efficiently encode streaming 2D movies. The value 
proposition is simple. Since the viewer is often focused 
on actors and objects towards the front of the scene, 
the depth information can be used to guide the movie 
encoding process to direct more of the available picture 
quality to areas of interest to the viewer. The result of 
this approach is that the same quality picture can be 
delivered for approximately 20% less bandwidth. This 
has a number of benefits; for the streaming movie 
company, they can deliver the same picture quality for 
less bandwidth, saving on their distribution costs; or 
alternatively they can keep the bandwidth at present 
levels and use the process to improve the perceived 
picture quality in the streaming movie. Research from 
Conviva suggests that the revenue uplift for improving 
picture quality is upwards of 11.4%. Bandwidth costs 
for streaming media are likely to become an increasing 
concern for streaming providers as the resolution 
of video evolves from high definition (HD) to ultra 
high definition (UHD) which requires four times the 
information of an HD image.

For the viewer, they can save bandwidth costs if their 
internet access is provided on a Usage Based Billing 
(UBB) model, or they benefit from improved picture 
quality and fewer buffering delays. This technology 
underpinned the recent investment in the company 
by US-based mobile licensing specialist, InterDigital 
Communications Corporation (Nasdaq: IDCC). Since 
the video is pre-processed before it is encoded, the 
solution is compatible with all the current digital media 
distribution formats and standards and does not require 
any additional decoder technology in the existing 
display devices, making it backward compatible with 
the sizeable existing installed base of TVs, PCs, tablets 
and smartphones.

Addressable Market
The Group is presently demonstrating the new solution 
to various streaming video companies and at trade 
shows such as the International CES and Mobile 
World Congress in conjunction with InterDigital. The 
objective is to introduce a solution during 2014 that 
saves bandwidth for streaming video operators. Tests 
have indicated that the new video pre-processing 
solution will save around 20% of the bandwidth that 
is used to stream a movie to the viewer’s home. 
The US market is the most mature streaming media 
market, where households presently consume around 
38Gb/month of downstream internet bandwidth, of 
which 67% or 25Gb is used for streaming movies 
from services such as Netflix, Amazon Prime and Hulu 
(source: Sandvine H2 2013 Global Internet Phenomena 
Report). Consequently, the Group is focused on 
developing opportunities in the US market where the 
new technologies can be used by customers to either 
reduce bandwidth costs, or improve the quality of 
experience for the viewer using the same bandwidth. 
Following the successful deployment of the solutions 
to US customers, the Group plans to introduce the 
solution internationally in emerging markets in Europe, 
South America and Asia.

Based on a current cost of a Petabyte (1024 Gb) of 
streaming media, it is estimated that the top seven US 
streaming media providers spent approximately $78m 
on bandwidth costs during 2013 and this is set to grow 
to an estimated $114m in 2014. On the basis that the 
pre-processing solution is able to save 20% of the 
bandwidth of a typical video stream, this would equate 
to savings of approximately $15m in 2013, growing to 
$23m in 2014 for a streaming media provider who pre-
processes their content with this solution. The solution 
will either be an ROI model based on the bandwidth 
cost savings achieved or a Quality of Experience (QOE) 
model and the Group plans to determine the optimal 
business model during 2014.

As mobile networks continue to evolve towards 4G LTE 
infrastructure, it is also expected that consumers will 
make more use of their mobile network providers to 
deliver streaming movie content. Therefore this licensing 
opportunity is expected to evolve from an in-home 
‘fixed access’ model to a fixed access and mobile 
access model over the 2014-2017 period, further 
increasing the addressable market size. The data rates 
on fixed access networks will further increase from 
2014 onwards as service providers begin the delivery of 
ultra high definition (UHD) or 4K content which requires 
four times as much data when compared to a normal 
HD image.

stRateGiC  RePoRt con t inued
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Specific Risks
Competitive risk exists in the market as follows:

• streaming content providers may determine that 
the pre-processing approach is not suited to their 
business needs resulting in low uptake of the 
solution by prospective licensees;

• competitive streaming bandwidth or picture 
quality improvement solutions may offer a better 
result and/or more favorable terms, reducing the 
attractiveness of the proposition to prospective 
licensees; and

• Viewers and subscribers may not adopt 4K/UHD 
display technologies, reducing the size of the 
potential market in future years.

The Group has undertaken its product development 
in conjunction with streaming content creators at 
select studios to ensure that the process does not 
detract from the quality of the viewing experience. 
During this process the Group has not encountered 
any similar solutions from competitors. By partnering 
with other industry-leading technology providers with 
complimentary solutions, the Group believes it can 
improve the performance of the overall solution and 
therefore increase the likelihood of success. While 
4K/Ultra High Definition content will place additional 
pressure to find solutions that improve bandwidth usage, 
the current market for streaming media to televisions 
and mobile devices is built around the delivery of high 
definition (HD) content and therefore the commercial 
opportunity remains viable irrespective of the consumer 
adoption of 4K/UHD devices and services.

viDeo conferenc ing
The real time capture of depth information together 
with a 2D image is becoming an increasingly viable 
application as products such as Intel’s RealSense 
and Google’s “Project Tango” depth sensors become 
available to application developers for use in PC’s, 
tablets and smartphones.

These new depth sensors and their related applications 
are expected to enable a range of new opportunities for 
the Group to exploit its class leading expertise in depth 
processing that include real time video conferencing.

The Group is pursuing two opportunities in this 
emerging market; real time background removal and 
improved video conferencing picture quality. These 
new solutions leverage the Group’s existing intellectual 
property and expertise in depth processing and depth-
based video signal encoding.

For real time background removal, the Group’s depth 
processing algorithms allow the participant in a video 
conference to be easily identified and tracked using 
either a depth sensor or a normal 2D webcam in a PC, 

tablet or smartphone. This depth tracking information 
can be used to remove the background behind the 
participant in real time and replace it with an alternative 
image. This feature can be used for professional 
applications such as inserting the participant into a 
PowerPoint presentation they are delivering during 
the video conference or removing the background 
for security reasons. For consumer applications, the 
participant can use the feature to place themselves 
into a still image, video or game sequence to share on 
social media.

Importantly, since the Group’s technology is able to 
use the existing 2D webcam to automatically identify 
and track the participant, the solution provides OEM 
customers with a lower risk, entry level solution that 
does not incur the additional expense of the separate 
depth sensor.

When coupled with the Group’s new depth-based 
video pre-processing solution, the video conferencing 
picture quality can be further improved by using the 
depth information to direct the video conference 
encoder to assign more of the bandwidth towards the 
participant, effectively improving the picture quality of 
the participant’s face and body to other’s on the video 
conference.

Addressable market
This new technology has already been demonstrated to 
several potential licensees in the PC and smartphone 
markets to evaluate the interest of the OEM community 
and likely use of these features by consumers. The 
initial results have been very positive.

DisplaySearch estimates that the depth sensor market 
in 2015 will exceed 300m units annually as they are 
incorporated into televisions, personal computers, 
mobile devices or as accessories to these devices 
(e.g. Microsoft’s X-Box Kinect). The adoption of these 
devices is anticipated to be rapid as they enable gesture 
sensing to expand the interaction of device users with 
the device for a variety of use cases.

Beyond the hardware-dependent market, the Group’s 
software solution can provide the real time video 
conferencing capability to any device with a suitable 
webcam including existing PCs, tablets, and smart 
phones. The addressable market for these devices is in 
excess of 1.5 billion units per year.

A per unit royalty in conjunction with a direct-to-
consumer software model will be used to monetise 
this opportunity by the Group with the expectation 
that the solution will become available in late 2014. As 
the Group assists prospective licensees in developing 
and refining their depth sensor solutions, development 
fees may be earned for customer specific development 
activities.
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stRateGiC  RePoRt con t inued

Dynamic  Background subs t i tu t i on

Using real-t ime depth map creation for social and business applications

CTO Dr. Julien Flack in his office 
through a standard 2D web camera

DDD’s real-time depth 
recovery software

Real-time background replacement for 
social media application

Real-time background replacement for 
business application
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Cur ren t  trad ing and out look
During 2014, the Group expects to augment the 
current technology licensing income from the 3D 
market with licensing revenue from new opportunities 
in the emerging 2D markets as the new depth sensor 
and video pre-processing solutions are deployed to 
video conferencing and streaming video licensees. This 
transition should reduce the Group’s reliance on the 
performance of the 3D market and create diversified 
licensing income.

In the 3D market, the Group will seek to secure 
licensees for new game and video 3D conversion apps, 
with a particular focus on Chinese Smart TV and 3D 
tablet manufacturers. Additional content acquisitions 
are planned for the Yabazam 3D movie streaming 
service to ensure that the growing number of users 
remain engaged with the service on Smart TVs and 3D 
tablets.

The Group appointed IP Navigation Group as its patent 
advisor in March 2014 to assist in licensing the Group’s 
extensive patent library. The objective is to secure 
license fees for the use of the Group’s international 
patent library claims in various 3D consumer products 
and professional services.

Where practical, the Group will also pursue new 
patent filings for the underlying ideas involved in these 
new solutions in order to continue to strengthen its 
international patent library.

Despite the challenges that were faced during 2013, 
the Board is confident that the Group can return to the 
growth performance that was demonstrated in recent 
years as the new technologies are delivered and the 
licensees are secured during 2014.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors of 
DDD Group plc and signed on its behalf by:

Nicholas Brigstocke  
Chairman 

Christopher Yewdall 
Chief Executive Officer

14 April 2014 14 April 2014
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Nicholas Brigstocke (71), non-executive Chairman
(independent1)
Nick was appointed a non-executive director of DDD in November 2001 and appointed Chairman in June 
2013. He retired in 2001 as Chairman of UK Equity Capital Markets at Credit Suisse First Boston (“CSFB”). He 
joined CSFB when it purchased Barclays de Zoete Wedd in January 1998, at which time he was Chairman and 
Managing Director of BZW’s UK corporate broking business. Prior to that, he was head of equity sales and a 
member of the equity management committee at BZW.

Christopher Yewdall (48), Chief Executive Officer
Chris was appointed Chief Executive Officer of DDD in November 2001. He joined DDD as Vice President of 
Sales and Marketing in September 1998, was appointed President of DDD USA in July 1999, became its Chief 
Executive Officer in July 2000 and was appointed to its Board of Directors of DDD Inc. in April 2001. Prior 
to joining DDD, Chris was Vice President, Business Development of C-Dilla Limited, an anti-piracy software 
provider servicing entertainment and business software developers. Between February 1991 and March 1997, 
he was General Manager and Vice President of Sales of Virtuality Inc., a virtual reality 3D technologies company 
with offices in Europe and North America.

Victoria Stull (43), Chief Financial Officer
Victoria was appointed to the Board of Directors of DDD on 18 July 2012. Victoria joined the Group’s finance 
team in October 2009 and was appointed as Chief Financial Officer in June 2010. Prior to joining DDD, 
Victoria was a founding member and Vice President of Sales & Business Development of GOQO, an online 
entertainment portal available in over 20,000 internet cafes throughout China. Victoria has also held financial 
positions at Gemstar-TV Guide International, a leading provider of interactive programming technologies in the 
digital television market, and Sony Pictures International Television. She spent five years in various audit roles 
with Sony Corporation of America and Deloitte & Touche LLP.

Dr. Sanji Arisawa (71), non-executive director 
(non-independent2)
Sanji was appointed a non-executive director of DDD in March 2005. He has been the President & CEO of 
Tokyo Stock Exchange listed Arisawa Manufacturing Co., Ltd. since 1995. Dr. Arisawa obtained his Ph.D. in 
operations research from North Carolina State University in 1973.

Paul Kristensen (70), non-executive director 
(independent1)
Paul was appointed to the DDD Board in November 2001 and is the President of Capital Technologies Pty Ltd, 
a venture capital firm in Australia. He has been a founding director and shareholder of numerous technology 
companies originating in Western Australia, including ERG Limited, Arbortech Pty Ltd, Kinetic Limited, TrueVision 
3D Pty Ltd (the precursor to DDD), and Structural Monitoring Systems Ltd. He is currently an associate of AADI 
Defence Pty Ltd and a non-executive director of Stochastic Simulation Ltd, Lumitex Ltd, Accumulus Pte Ltd 
(Singapore), HIVAP Global Cooling Pte Ltd (Singapore) and Asia Pacific Technology Ltd (Hong Kong). Paul 
is a co-founder of Western Australian Angel Investors, Inc, and was a member of the Australian IT Industry 
Innovation Council for its full term from 2009-13. He was appointed a non-executive director of DDD Inc. (the 
predecessor parent company) in May 1996 and served as Chairman of DDD Group plc from May 2002 to 
June 2013.
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Warren Littlefield (61), non-executive director 
(independent1)
Warren was appointed a non-executive director of DDD in November 2001 and is retiring his seat effective 
April 15, 2014. He was appointed to the board of DDD Inc. in August 2001 and is the founder of The Littlefield 
Company, which develops and produces television programming. He is currently Executive Producing with Joel 
& Ethan Coen and Noah Hawley an adaptation of the Coen’s Academy Award winning film Fargo for FX cable. 
Warren spent 20 years with NBC including nine years as President of NBC Entertainment which is chronicled in 
his New York Times bestselling book “TOP OF THE ROCK: Inside The Rise & Fall of Must See TV”.

Hans Roger Snook (65), non-executive director 
(independent3)
Hans was appointed a non-executive director of DDD in January 2006. Hans is the Chairman of Truemove, 
a mobile telephone operator based in Thailand. He also currently serves on the Board of Directors of Health 
Limited and The Integrated Health Consultancy Ltd. Hans was the founder and Chief Executive of Orange and 
served on the board of the main holding company and two of its subsidiaries. He articulated the vision of a ‘wire 
free future’ which has driven the branding, strategy and operation of Orange. Under Hans’ leadership, Orange 
launched on 28 April 1994 and had a profound impact on the mobile market in both the UK and globally. In 
March 1996, Orange listed on the London and NASDAQ exchanges and, in June of that year, became the 
youngest company to enter the FTSE 100. After a series of acquisitions, Hans continued as Chief Executive of 
the enlarged Orange group, leading it to a subsequent flotation in February 2001, at which point he became 
Special Adviser to the group, a role from which he stepped down at the end of 2001. From 2002 until July 
2005, Hans was non-executive Chairman of Carphone Warehouse Group plc. From May 2005 to February 
2007, Hans was non-executive Chairman of MonsterMob Group plc.

1 The Board is satisfied that this non-executive director remains independent in character and judgement despite 
serving as a director in excess of 9 years and that there are no relationships or circumstances which are likely to 
affect or could appear to affect, his judgement. Each director with this designation will stand for election annually to 
ensure shareholder approval.

2 The Board is satisfied that this non-executive director brings significant knowledge, experience and value to the 
Board despite being non-independent. When matters specific to the related party interests disclosed in Note 22 
of the Group financial statements are before the Board, this director abstains from voting in accordance with the 
Board’s rules regarding Conflicts of Interest (page 15).

3 As defined in The UK Corporate Governance Code.
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors acknowledge that adhering to rules of good corporate governance is in the best interests of 
the Group and its shareholders for the long-term success of the organisation. As an AIM listed Company, the 
Group follows the principles of the Quoted Companies Alliance (“QCA”) Corporate Governance Guidelines for 
Smaller Quoted Companies and NAPF AIM Guidelines.

As the Company’s shares are traded on AIM, the Company has not complied with the UK Corporate 
Governance Code (‘the Code’) nor is it required to. However, the Company is committed to high standards 
of corporate governance and draws upon best practice available, including those aspects of the Code 
considered appropriate.

ART ICLES

The Company’s Articles of Association are available on the Company’s website and may be amended by 
special resolution of shareholders.

BRANCH OFF ICES

The Company has subsidiaries located in Los Angeles, California, USA and Perth, Western Australia as detailed 
on the back cover of this document.

DIRECTORS

The Company is led and controlled by the Board of Directors, chaired by Nicholas Brigstocke with five non-
executive directors and two executive directors. The chairman is responsible for leadership of the board and 
ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role. The non-executive directors constructively challenge and  
help develop proposals on strategy.

Subject to the Company’s Articles of Association, the prevailing legislation and any directions given by special 
resolution, the business and affairs of the Company will be managed by the Directors who may exercise all such 
powers of the Company.

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the Company is governed by its Articles of 
Association, the Companies Act 2006, and related legislation. Directors may be appointed by the Company by 
ordinary resolution or by the Board on recommendation of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee. A 
Director appointed by the Board holds office only until the following annual general meeting and is then eligible 
for election by the shareholders but is not taken into account in determining the Directors or the number of 
Directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting. The Company may, by ordinary resolution of which 
special notice has been given, remove any Director before the expiration of his/her term of office.

Biographical details for each of the Directors are set out on pages 12 and 13. Details of the dates of appointment 
of Directors within the year are shown in the Directors’ Report. All Directors are subject to re-election within 
a three-year period. Directors have a standard three month notice period in their service agreements specific 
to the director role. The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and have been so throughout 
the year.

The non-executive directors meet, without the presence of the executive directors, whenever it is appropriate 
for them to do so. All the Directors have access to the advice of the Company Secretary and may, in furtherance 
of their duties, take independent legal and financial advice at the Company’s expense. They also have access 
to the minutes of the Board, in which any views expressed by them regarding matters pertaining to the Group 
are recorded.

Documented succession planning and structured performance evaluations have been discussed by the Board 
but have not yet been fully implemented. Informal evaluations are conducted by the Chairman with non-executive 
and executive directors regularly to ensure commitment and identify any deficiencies in skills for further training.
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DIRECTORS DURING THE F INANCIAL PER IOD

The names and biographical details of the current Board of Directors are shown on pages 12 and 13. The 
following Directors held office during the year ended 31 December 2013:

Director
Date of original  

appointment
Expiration of  
current term 

Nicholas Brigstocke (Non-executive Chairman) 23 November 2001 June 2014
Christopher Yewdall (Chief Executive Officer) 5 September 2001 June 2015
Victoria Stull (Chief Financial Officer) 11 July 2012 June 2016
Dr. Sanji Arisawa (Non-executive director) 10 March 2005 June 2014
Paul Kristensen (Non-executive director) 23 November 2001 June 2014
Warren Littlefield (Non-executive director) 23 November 2001 *
Hans Roger Snook (Non-executive director) 12 January 2006 June 2014

* Warren Littlefield resigned his seat with the Board of Directors effective 15 April 2014 but will remain a consultant 
available to the Company until early 2016. The non-executive position will not be refilled.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), Hans Snook, Nicholas Brigstocke, Paul 
Kristensen, and Dr. Sanji Arisawa will retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to 
be held on 10 June 2014 and will seek re-election at the meeting.

The remuneration and any disclosable interests of the directors at 31 December 2013 and at 9 April 2014 
including holdings, if any, of spouses and children aged under 18 is presented in the Remuneration Report 
which forms part of this Directors’ Report on pages 22-24.

Related party transactions are included in Note 22 to the consolidated Group financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNIT IES

A qualifying third-party indemnity provision as defined in Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 is in force 
for the benefit of each of the Directors in respect of liabilities incurred as a result of their office to the extent 
permitted by law. In respect of those liabilities for which Directors may not be indemnified, the Company 
maintained a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy throughout the financial year with a cover limit of 
£2,000,000 effective as of April 2012.

BOARD MEET INGS

The Board generally meets quarterly and at such other times as required, and receives regular reports on a 
wide range of key issues including operational performance, risk management and corporate strategy.

The Board’s accountability is demonstrated by the adoption of a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved 
to the Board for its decision concerning key areas across the Group’s activities, thereby ensuring that all major 
decisions affecting the Group are taken at Board level. These matters are documented on the Company’s 
website. All the Directors are free to bring any matter to the attention of the Board, at any time. Additionally, 
the Nominated Advisor is invited annually to provide a Director Obligations presentation to the Directors and the 
legal advisors provide written governance updates and guidance as needed.

The Board invites the other executive officers of the Group to attend and participate in meetings to remove any 
risk of over-reliance on the executive directors.

COMMITTEES

The combined Audit and Corporate Governance Committee and the combined Remuneration and Nomination 
Committee meet at least twice a year and the membership is reviewed annually. During 2013, no additional 
changes were proposed to the operation of the Board or its committees; however, in 2014, changes are 
anticipated given the retirement of a director and the appointment of Nick Brigstocke to Chairman.

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee is chaired by Nicholas Brigstocke and comprises two other 
non-executive directors, Paul Kristensen and Warren Littlefield. The external auditor, together with the Chief 
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and other financial staff are invited to attend these meetings as and 
when required.
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In accordance with its terms of reference, the principal function of this committee is to determine the 
appropriateness of accounting policies (see Note 2 to the Group financial statements) to be used in the Group’s 
annual results. In addition the Committee is responsible for monitoring the independence of the Group’s 
auditor, assessing the Group’s audit arrangements and the Group’s system of internal controls, regular review 
and confirmation of the business risks and mitigating controls, and reviewing the half-yearly and annual results 
before publication to ensure sufficient useful information is supplied in a useable format with no significant 
omissions. The committee also reviews anti-bribery policies and compliance with best practices for corporate 
governance and is the point of contact for monitoring of ethics and receipt of any whistleblowing assertions in 
accordance with the Group employee policies and procedures.

The Committee relies on routine financial and business updates from the management team as well as detailed 
memos in reference to going concern, risks and controls, and any other matters that are required in conjunction 
with the financial reporting. The Committee also receives an annual report from the Company’s external auditor 
and meets with them without the presence of executive management to discuss the business directly and 
ensure no limitations were imposed by management.

A report of the audit committee is provided in a separate section below.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee is chaired by Paul Kristensen and includes two other non-
executive directors, Nicholas Brigstocke and Warren Littlefield. In accordance with its terms of reference the 
Committee determines the level and make-up of both fixed and variable remuneration (including bonuses 
and options) of the executive directors and certain senior management. This also includes formulation of 
remuneration policy throughout the Group, embracing both share options and bonuses.

The Committee also evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and considers 
all new Board appointments and re-appointments against this evaluation. The Committee sets the Company’s 
Equal Opportunity for Employment policy and recognises the importance of diversity, including gender, at all 
levels within the organisation. With the appointment of Miss Stull to the Board in July 2012, female board 
members now represent approximately 14% of the Board’s composition. The Committee also oversees 
the induction of new appointments and works with executive team to coordinate introductions to strategic 
shareholders as deemed necessary.

The Report of the Board regarding Directors’ Remuneration and the Group’s remuneration policy giving details 
of Company policy and individual Directors’ remuneration is set out on pages 22 to 24. The remuneration 
arrangements of the non-executive directors are recommended by the executive directors in consultation with 
the Company’s Independent Advisors and then approved by the Board as a whole.

Executive Management Committee

The Executive Management Committee (the ‘EMC’), under the chairmanship of the Chief Executive Officer, or 
in his absence the Chief Financial Officer, meets every two weeks and is responsible for the day-to-day running 
of the Group. The members of the EMC include the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (Director), together 
with the Chief Financial Officer (Director), Chief Technology Officer and four additional business heads who are 
not officers or Directors.

Attendance by the Directors at formal board and/or committee meetings in 2013 is summarised as follows:

Director
# of Board 

Meetings Attended

# of Audit and  
Corporate Governance  

Committee  
Meetings Attended

# of Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee 

Meetings Attended

Total # of board  
and committee  

Meetings Attended

Total Held 6 2 1 9
Nicholas Brigstocke 6 2 1 9
Christopher Yewdall 6 2 N/A 8
Victoria Stull 6 2 N/A 8
Dr. Sanji Arisawa 5 N/A N/A 5
Paul Kristensen 6 2 1 9
Warren Littlefield 5 2 1 8
Hans Roger Snook 5 N/A N/A 5

The Board has scheduled seven board meetings to be held during 2014.
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PRINC IPAL R ISKS AND UNCERTAINT IES

The principal risks and uncertainties including the financial risks of the business are discussed in detail 
throughout the Strategic Report.

The Directors have ensured that the Group has effective systems for managing and mitigating significant  
risks, which, where relevant, incorporate performance management systems and appropriate remuneration 
incentives. In identifying and assessing these risks, the Directors consider the Group’s short and long-term 
value, as well as the opportunities to enhance value that may arise from an appropriate response to such a risk.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance 
and position are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 11.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts up to 31 December 2016 which indicate the Company will 
have access to sufficient cash. Forecast revenue includes assumptions regarding existing contracts and new 
revenue streams arising from contracts which are in the negotiation phase; however, there is uncertainty that 
contract negotiations will be finalised.

If there are material adverse variances against these forecasts, the Company is able to institute measures 
to take mitigating actions to manage cash resources and access additional funding from strategic sources 
if required.

The Directors have concluded that the combination of these circumstances represent a material uncertainty 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Nevertheless after 
making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will have access to adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For these reasons, they continue to 
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility both for the Group’s system of internal controls, which includes 
internal financial controls, and for reviewing their effectiveness. The Directors recognise that no system of 
internal control can provide absolute assurance. The Group’s systems are designed to manage the risk of  
failure to achieve business objectives and therefore can only provide the Directors with reasonable assurance 
against material misstatement or loss.

The key elements of the Group’s internal control system, which have been operational for the whole of the 
financial year, are as follows:

Management structure
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group and there is a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved 
for decision by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer has been given responsibility for specific aspects of 
the Group’s affairs. Reporting to the Chief Executive is the Executive Management Committee which is 
responsible for the day to day running of the Group’s affairs.

Monitoring systems used by the Board
The Board receives regular reports on the financial and business performance of the Group. The Board is 
regularly advised through these reports on the working capital position and financial performance relative to 
the Group’s approved budget.

Internal audit
The Board reviews from time to time the need for an internal audit function and remains of the opinion that the 
systems of internal financial control are appropriate to the Group’s present activities and that such a function 
is unnecessary.

REPORT OF  THE AUDIT  COMMITTEE

The audit committee has met and reviewed the Group’s accounting policies including detailed memorandums 
regarding key accounting policies and judgements including the Group’s going concern documentation, 
deferred tax asset position, investment in subsidiary valuation, and internal control testing and risk review. 
Additionally, the committee met in advance of the half-yearly financial reporting prior to the Board approval to 
review the reporting, assumptions, judgements, and risks at that time.
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The committee reviewed the audit planning documents provided by Grant Thornton in advance of the audit 
and were satisfied with the scope, efficiency and effectiveness of the plan. Following the completion of audit 
field work, the committee reviewed the documented audit findings report and separately met with the auditors 
to discuss the interactions with management. The committee also reviewed the business risks and mitigating 
processes noted in the Strategic Report and are satisfied with the disclosures in light of the strategy of the 
Board and its risk appetite. Additionally, no material weaknesses were found in the internal control environment 
during the year.

In accordance with auditing standards, Grant Thornton has advised the Company that the firm is independent 
within the meaning of regulatory and professional requirements and that the objectivity of the engagement partner 
and audit staff is not impaired. Having considered this opinion, the Committee believes that the continuing 
provision to the Group of audit service has not compromised the independence of the auditors in relation to 
their audit of the affairs of the Company and the Group. Additionally, the Committee has preapproved any  
non-audit services performed during 2013 (see Note 5 to the consolidated Group financial statements for more 
detail) and ascertained that they do not create an audit independence risk as they are performed by separate 
engagement teams and have been predominantly tax advisory services for the Group’s subsidiary entities.

CONFL ICTS OF  INTEREST

Under the Companies Act 2006, directors are subject to a statutory duty to avoid a situation where they have, or 
can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the interests of the Company. 
The Companies Act 2006 allows directors of public companies to authorise conflicts and potential conflicts of 
interest of directors where the Articles of Association contain a provision to that effect. The Company’s Articles 
of Association afford the Directors such powers. Directors who have an interest in matters under discussion at 
Board meetings are required to declare this interest and, subject to certain exceptions, to abstain from voting 
on the relevant matters. In addition, the Directors will be able to impose limits or conditions when giving any 
authorisation, if they think this is appropriate.

During the year, these procedures were followed and operated effectively.

AUDITOR

The auditor, Grant Thornton UK LLP, offer themselves for re-appointment in accordance with Section 489  
of the Companies Act 2006. Following a review of their continued independence by the Audit Committee, a 
resolution for their re-appointment will be proposed at the AGM.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Post balance sheet events are discussed in Note 23 to the consolidated Group financial statements.

DIV IDEND

The Directors do not propose the payment of a dividend (2012: nil). In due course, the Directors will consider 
the payment of dividends, as and when the Group is in a position to do so.

PURCHASE OF  OWN SHARES

During the Annual General Meeting in 2013, the Directors neither sought nor obtained permission from 
shareholders for any type of share buyback program.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The development of new and innovative technology is a key strategy in the Group’s business and investment 
in research and development continues to be a key element of that policy. Further discussion on the R&D 
initiatives is provided in the Strategic Report. The expenditure on research and development in the current year 
was $1,597,000 (2012: $1,639,000).

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Group recognises the importance and contribution of its employees. There is considerable value placed on 
the involvement of employees in the development of the business and their participation in the decision making 
process. This is encouraged by the open environment in the Group and through the delegation of responsibility 
throughout the business.
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Presentations are made to all staff on a regular basis to encourage a full understanding of the Group’s strategy, 
vision and operational developments. All employees are eligible for share awards and a number of employees 
have become shareholders thereby encouraging employee share ownership.

The Group is committed to the principle of equal opportunity in employment and to ensuring that no applicant 
or employee receives less favourable treatment on the grounds of age, gender, disability, ethnic origin, political 
or other opinion, religion or sexual orientation.

Disability is not seen as an inhibitor to employment or career development. Employees who become disabled are, 
wherever possible, given assistance to continue in their existing employment or to be trained for other positions.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIB IL ITY

The Group recognises that it has responsibilities to all stakeholders which include employees, partners, 
customers, suppliers, the local community and the surrounding environment where it operates. Employees are 
highly regarded and valued, and their employment and other rights are respected. The Group is committed  
to the important principle of equal opportunity which is reflected in the Group’s recruitment, disciplinary 
and grievance policies. The Group is dedicated to supplying products of top quality to meet its customers’ 
requirements in a manner that is consistent with high environmental and ethical standards.

The Board understands and recognises the increasing importance of environmental issues, although it has 
limited direct impact on the environment since it is not involved in heavy industry or any direct manufacturing 
activity. Group premises are offices, with the main activity in the Group being the development of hardware and 
software designs by employees working on computers, involving neither the use of hazardous substances or 
complex waste emissions.

POLIT ICAL DONAT IONS

During the year, no political donations were made or political expenditure incurred by the company or 
its subsidiaries.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s share capital includes two classes of securities: ordinary shares (par value of 1p) traded on 
AIM (more fully described in Note 19), and deferred shares (par value of 9p) with restricted rights created as a 
result of the 2008 share capital restructure more fully described in Note 8 to the consolidated Group financial 
statements.

There are no persons holding securities in the Company carrying special rights with regard to control of the 
Company. The Company is not aware of any agreement between holders of securities that may result in 
restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting rights.

There were 143,663,572 ordinary shares and 74,416,547 deferred shares in issue at 31 December 2013. The 
share price has ranged from a high of 28.25p to a low of 5.62p during the year with a closing price of 6.5p at 
31 December 2013.

Past performance cannot be relied on as a guide to future performance.

RELAT IONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board welcomes the views of shareholders. The AGM is used as an opportunity to communicate with 
shareholders. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s AGM in order to take advantage of the 
opportunity to ask questions of the Directors.

Shareholders may also contact the Company in writing or via its website. Additional information is supplied 
through the circulation of the Interim Report and the Annual Report and Accounts. During the year the Company 
issued a series of announcements to the London Stock Exchange.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and, from time to time, the Chairman or other Directors, 
meet individual and institutional shareholders and provide such information as is permissible in order to facilitate 
a better understanding of the Group’s business and operations. Additionally, the Board usually receives 
shareholder feedback reports prepared by the Nominated Advisor following pre-arranged meetings with 
institutional fund managers and analysts.



D
D

D
 G

roup plc | 2013 A
nnual R

ep
o

rt

DIRECTORS’ REPORT  continued  

20

SUBSTANT IAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013 and as at 9 April 2014, the Company has been notified of the following shareholdings 
amounting to 3% or more of the issued share capital:

31 December 2013 9 April 2014

Shareholder

Number of  
ordinary 1p  

shares

Percentage of 
issued ordinary  

1p share capital

Number of  
ordinary 1p  

shares

Percentage of  
issued ordinary  

1p share capital

Arisawa Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 29,856,123 20.8% 29,856,123 20.8%
Wistron Corporation 10,169,831 7.1% 10,169,831 7.1%
Directors 11,830,909 8.2% 11,830,909 8.2%
Nigel Wray 10,120,648 7.0% 10,120,648 7.0%
Michael Stubbs 8,948,740 6.2% 8,948,740 6.2%
InterDigital Finance Corporation 7,039,760 4.9% 7,039,760 4.9%
Robert Morton 6,250,000 4.4% 6,250,000 4.4%
Hargreave Hale Limited 5,029,907 3.5% 5,029,907 3.5%
Octopus Investments Ltd 4,300,960 3.0% 4,015,960 2.8%

ANNUAL GENERAL MEET ING (AGM)

The AGM will be held at 10:30 a.m. on Tuesday 10 June 2014 at 3 More London Riverside, London SE1 2AQ, 
United Kingdom. The business to be transacted at the meeting will be set out in full in the Notice convening the 
AGM. The results of the AGM will be announced following the AGM.

STATEMENT OF  D IRECTORS’ RESPONSIB IL IT IES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable laws and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the 
Directors have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable laws) and 
the consolidated accounts in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the 
European Union (IFRS). Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless 
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and profit or loss of the Company and 
Group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and IFRSs have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group 
and the parent Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain 
the Group and parent Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 
position of the Group and the parent Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply 
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of both the Group and 
the parent Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 
other irregularities.
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The Directors confirm that:

• so far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; 
and

• the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given pursuant to section 418 of the Companies Act 2006 and should be interpreted in 
accordance with and subject to these provisions.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the Group’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination 
of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors of DDD Group plc and signed on its behalf by:

 
Nicholas Brigstocke  Christopher Yewdall
Chairman  Chief Executive Officer

14 April 2014 14 April 2014
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REMUNERAT ION AND NOMINAT ION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee advises and makes recommendations to the Board on an 
appropriate remuneration policy for the Group. They are responsible for determining and agreeing with the 
Board the remuneration package of the executive directors of the Board. This includes basic salary, annual 
bonus, level of awards under the Employee Share Plan and the terms of any performance conditions that may 
apply to the exercise of such rights, determining the terms and conditions of service and any compensation 
payments, and to ensure that such remuneration levels are appropriate and acceptable.

During the financial year the members of this committee were Paul Kristensen as Chairman, Nicholas Brigstocke, 
and Warren Littlefield. Norton Rose Fulbright LLP has provided independent general legal services as needed.

REMUNERAT ION POL ICY

The main objectives of the policy are to ensure that pay and benefits packages are sufficiently competitive to 
attract, develop and retain high calibre executives. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee develops and 
implements measures aimed at maintaining remuneration packages that satisfy these objectives. It also seeks 
to align individual reward and incentives with the performance of the Group and, hence, with the interests of 
the shareholders.

Group performance evaluation criteria is reviewed annually and includes financial goals (such as, revenue 
maximisation, budgetary controls and cash generation as measured through KPIs such as active licensees, 
shipment volumes, and material new licensees) as well as discretionary non-financial criteria (e.g. risk 
management, maintaining internal control systems, filing of new patents, creation of new products, and 
exploration of new markets).

Share incentives
The Company is currently operating an Employee Share Scheme (ESS) which was approved by shareholders 
at the July 2003 AGM and amended with shareholder approval in February 2011. The share options granted  
under the ESS are granted at market value and have no voting rights until issued on exercise after full payment 
of the option price and relevant taxation. Details of the outstanding historical grants under the plan as of the 
year end can be found in Note 18 of the Consolidated Group Financials.

Bonuses
During 2013, the Directors re-approved a discretionary bonus pool (approx. 1% of targeted revenues) to be 
used to incentivise non-executive and non-commission eligible employees for major commercial contributions 
and/or the achievement of Group financial objectives. The pool is accrued through the year and any payouts 
are made with the consent of the Remuneration Committee once objectives have been confirmed. Annually, 
the Committee also reviews the Group performance and achievement of financial goals in order to provide 
executive bonuses which are currently discretionary but remain closely linked to Group performance criteria 
noted above. No bonus payments were made for the 2013 financial year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERAT ION

The remuneration of the non-executive directors is established by the executive directors of the Board in 
consultation with the Company’s Nominated Advisor. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee also has 
discussions with the Board in relation to the Board’s annual report to shareholders on the Group’s policy on 
the remuneration of the executive directors and in particular the Directors’ Remuneration Report. No Board 
member is involved in deciding their own remuneration package.
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Directors’ emoluments

Executive 
salary 
$’000

Bonus 
$’000

Director 
fees 

$’000

Benefits 
in kind1 

$’000
Pension 

$’000

Dec 
2013 
Total 

$’000

Dec 
2012 
Total 

$’000

Non-executive directors

Nicholas Brigstocke2 — — 72 14 — 86 52

Dr. Sanji Arisawa — — 47 — — 47 48

Paul Kristensen2 — — 68 — — 68 87

Warren Littlefield — — 50 — — 50 48

Hans Roger Snook — — 47 10 — 57 52

Executive directors

Christopher Yewdall 350 — 5 12 — 367 424

Victoria Stull3 230 — — 12 — 242 143

Total 580 — 289 48 — 917 854

1  Benefits in kind are made up of health care costs paid by the Group for executive benefit only. Additionally, mandatory contributions 
to UK National Insurance and US Social Security are also included for applicable Directors.

2 In June 2013, Paul Kristensen resigned as Chairman of the Board and Nicholas Brigstocke was appointed as his replacement.

3  Victoria Stull was appointed to the Board of Directors in July 2012 therefore the 2012 figure represents a partial-year of emoluments.

Directors’ share incentives
Options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013:

Director
1 January 

2013 Granted
Lapsed/ 

Cancelled Exercised
31 December 

2013

Exercise  
prices  

(pence)
Exercisable  

up to

Non-executive directors

Nicholas Brigstocke 200,000 — — (200,000)1 — 10p 23 Apr 2013

200,000 — — — 200,000 16.9p 4 Jan 2016

400,000 — — (200,000) 200,000

Dr. Sanji Arisawa — — — — — 10p 23 Apr 2013

240,000 — — — 240,000 16.9p 4 Jan 2016

240,000 — — — 240,000

Paul Kristensen 100,000 — — (100,000)2 — 10p 23 Apr 2013

160,000 — — — 160,000 16.9p 4 Jan 2016

260,000 — — (100,000) 160,000

Warren Littlefield 200,000 — — (200,000)3 — 10p 23 Apr 2013

130,000 — — — 130,000 16.9p 4 Jan 2016

330,000 — — (200,000) 130,000

Hans Roger Snook 200,000 — — (200,000)4 — 10p 23 Apr 2013

200,000 — — — 200,000 16.9p 4 Jan 2016

400,000 — — (200,000) 200,000

Sub-Total (NED) 1,630,000 — — (700,000) 930,000

1  Mr. Brigstocke exercised 200,000 ordinary 1p shares at 23.5p prior to their expiration which resulted in a compensation gain for 
UK tax purposes of £27,000.

2  Mr. Kristensen exercised 100,000 ordinary 1p shares at 14p prior to their expiration which resulted in a compensation gain for UK 
tax purposes of £4,000.

3  Mr. Littlefield exercised 200,000 ordinary 1p shares at 23p prior to their expiration which resulted in a compensation gain for UK 
tax purposes of £26,000.

4  Mr. Snook exercised 200,000 ordinary 1p shares at 21.75p prior to their expiration which resulted in a compensation gain for UK 
tax purposes of £23,500.
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Director
1 January 

2013 Granted
Lapsed/  

Cancelled Exercised
31 December 

2013

Exercise 
prices 

(pence)
Exercisable 

up to

Executive directors

Christopher Yewdall 800,000 — (400,000) (400,000) — 10p 23 Apr 2013

1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 17.5p 4 Jan 2016

1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 27.25p 13 Feb 2017

300,000 — — — 300,000 25p 8 July 2017

3,100,000 — (400,000) (400,000) 2,300,000

Victoria Stull 200,000 — — (75,000) 125,000 13.9p 4 Dec 2014

400,000 400,000 17.5p 4 Jan 2016

500,000 — — — 500,000 27.25p 13 Feb 2017

150,000 — — — 150,000 25p 8 July 2017

1,250,000 — — (75,000) 1,175,000

Sub-total (ED) 4,350,000 — (400,000) (475,000) 3,475,000

Grand Total 5,980,000 — (400,000) (1,175,000) 4,405,000

Directors’ interests
The disclosable interests of the Directors at 31 December 2013 including shareholdings, if any, of wives and 
children aged under 18 is presented as follows:

31 December
2012

31 December
2013

9 April
2014

Nicholas Brigstocke 1,407,045 2,007,045 2,007,045

Christopher Yewdall 2,281,808 2,681,808 2,681,808

Victoria Stull 50,000 126,000 126,000

Dr. Sanji Arisawa 1,889,200 1,989,200 1,989,200

Paul Kristensen 405,204 455,204 455,204

Warren Littlefield 465,000 515,000 515,000

Hans Roger Snook 3,856,652 4,056,652 4,056,652

Contractual interests
No Director had, during or at the end of the year, a material interest in any contract that was significant in 
relation to the Group’s business.

This report was approved by the Board and was signed on its behalf by:

Paul Kristensen 
Remuneration and Nomination Committee Chairman 
14 April 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S  REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DDD GROUP PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of DDD Group plc for the year ended 31 December 2013 
which comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of financial 
position, the consolidated statement of cash flows, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the 
related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union.
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s 
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company 
and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 20-21, the Directors are 
responsible for the preparation of the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Group financial statements in accordance 
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to 
comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s 
website at www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm.

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the Group financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its loss for the year 
then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Emphasis of matter, going concern
In forming our opinion on the Group financial statements, which is not modified, we have considered the 
adequacy of the disclosure made in Note 1 to the Group financial statements concerning the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern.
The Group incurred a net loss of $2,569,000 during the year ended 31 December 2013.
As explained in Note 1, should material adverse changes against cash flow forecasts occur the Group is able to 
take mitigating actions to manage cash resources and access additional funding from strategic sources if required.
These conditions, along with the other matters explained in Note 1 to the Group financial statements, indicate 
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. The Group financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the 
Company was unable to continue as a going concern.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for 
which the consolidated Group financial statements are prepared is consistent with the Group financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following:
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent Company financial statements of DDD Group plc for the year ended 
31 December 2013. That report includes an emphasis of matter.

Marc Summers, BSc, FCA 
Senior Statutory Auditor 
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants

London 
14 April 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

fo r  the  yea r  ended 31  December  2013

Notes

31 Dec
2013
$’000

31Dec
2012
$’000

Revenue 3 3,400 8,620

Costofsales 3 (39) (244)

Grossprofit 3 3,361 8,376

Depreciation/amortisationexpense 9,10 (1,062) (1,190)

Sharebasedpayments 18 (426) (733)

Otheradministrationexpenses (4,287) (5,242)

Totaladministrativeexpenses (5,775) (7,165)

Otherincome 415 79

Operating(loss)/profit (1,999) 1,290

Analysed as:

(Loss)/earningsbeforeinterest,taxes,depreciation,
amortisationandsharebasedpayments(AdjustedEBITDA) (511) 3,213

Depreciation/amortisationexpense (1,062) (1,190)

Sharebasedpayments (426) (733)

(1,999) 1,290

Financeincome 11 24

(Loss)/profitfromcontinuingoperationsbeforetax (1,988) 1,314

Incometaxexpense 7 (581) (550)

(Loss)/profitfortheyear (2,569) 764

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year:

Exchangedifferencesontranslationofforeignoperations
whichwillbesubsequentlyreclassifiedtoprofitandloss (165) 37

Othercomprehensive(loss)/incomefortheyear,netoftax (165) 37

Totalcomprehensive(loss)/incomefortheyear (2,734) 801

(Loss)/profit per share from both total and continuing operations

Basic(centspershare) 8 (1.86) 0.57

Diluted(centspershare) 8 (1.86) 0.55

Theaccompanyingprincipalaccountingpoliciesandnotesformpartoftheseconsolidatedfinancialstatements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  F INANCIAL POSIT ION 

as  a t  31  December  2013

Notes

31 Dec
2013
$’000

31Dec
2012
$’000

Assets

Non-currentassets

Intangibleassets 9 3,428 2,592

Property,plantandequipment 10 87 139

Deferredtaxasset 11 1,096 1,096

Totalnon-currentassets 4,611 3,827

Currentassets

Inventory 12 6 7

Tradeandotherreceivables 13 506 1,678

Cashandcashequivalents 14 2,661 3,595

Totalcurrentassets 3,173 5,280

Total assets 7,784 9,107

Equity and liabilities

Capitalandreserves

Issuedcapital 19 13,414 13,005

Sharepremium 19 18,543 17,069

Mergerreserve 21,898 21,469

Sharebasedpaymentreserve 1,861 1,515

Translationreserve (3,072) (1,825)

Retainedearnings (46,406) (43,968)

Totalequity 6,238 7,265

Non-currentliabilities

Deferredtaxliabilities 15 619 543

Totalnon-currentliabilities 619 543

Currentliabilities

Tradeandotherpayables 16 927 1,299

Totalcurrentliabilities 927 1,299

Totalliabilities 1,546 1,842

Total equity and liabilities 7,784 9,107

Theconsolidated financial statementswereapprovedby theboardofDirectorson14April2014andsigned
onitsbehalfby:

Christopher Yewdall 
ChiefExecutiveOfficer
Companynumber:4271085
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  CASH FLOwS  

fo r  the  yea r  ended 31  December  2013

Notes

12 months to
31 Dec

2013
$’000

12monthsto
31Dec

2012
$’000

Cash flows from operating activities

(Loss)/profitfortheyear (2,569) 764

Financeincomeintheconsolidatedstatementofcomprehensiveincome (11) (24)

Taxintheconsolidatedstatementofcomprehensiveincome 581 550

Amortisation 9 976 1,101

Depreciation 10 86 89

Lossondisposalofassets 23 —

Sharebasedpayments 426 733

Decrease/(increase)ininventory 1 (7)

Decrease/(increase)intradeandotherreceivables 1,172 (453)

(Decrease)/increaseintradeandotherpayables (372) 484

Netcashgeneratedbyoperations 313 3,237

Incometaxpaid 7 (503) (1,044)

Interestreceived 11 24

Netcash(usedin)/generatedbyoperatingactivities (179) 2,217

Cash flows from investing activities

Paymentsforintangibleassets 9 (1,852) (1,808)

Paymentsforproperty,plantandequipment 10 (45) (65)

Netcashusedininvestingactivities (1,897) (1,873)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceedsfromissueofequityshares 19 1,292 72

Issuancecosts (11) —

Netcashgeneratedbyfinancingactivities 1,281 72

Net(decrease)/increaseincashandcashequivalents (795) 416

Exchange(losses)/gains (139) 36

Total(decrease)/increaseincashandcashequivalents (934) 452

Cashandcashequivalentsatthestartoftheyear 3,595 3,143

Cashandcashequivalentsattheendoftheyear 14 2,661 3,595
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  CHANGES IN  EQUITY 

fo r  the  yea r  ended 31  December  2013

Share
capital

Share
premium

Merger
reserve

Share
based

payment
reserve

Translation
reserve

Retained
earnings

Total
equity

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 January 2012 12,427 16,254 20,524 727 486 (44,759) 5,659

Transactions with owners

Issueofshares 6 66 — — — — 72

Sharebasedpaymentreservetransfer1 — — — (27) — 27 —

Equitysettledshareoptions — — — 733 — — 733

Foreignexchangedifferences 572 749 945 82 (2,348) — —

Totaltransactionswithowners 578 815 945 788 (2,348) 27 805

Comprehensive income

Totalprofitfortheyear — — — — — 764 764

Othercomprehensiveincome–Foreignexchange — — — — 37 — 37

Totalcomprehensiveincome — — — — 37 764 801

At 31 December 2012 13,005 17,069 21,469 1,515 (1,825) (43,968) 7,265

Transactions with owners

Issueofshares 148 1,133 — — — — 1,281

Sharebasedpaymentreservetransfer1 — — — (131) — 131 —

Equitysettledshareoptions — — — 426 — — 426

Foreignexchangedifferences 261 341 429 51 (1,082) — —

Totaltransactionswithowners 409 1,474 429 346 (1,082) 131 1,707

Comprehensive loss

Totallossfortheyear — — — — — (2,569) (2,569)

Othercomprehensiveloss–Foreignexchange — — — — (165) — (165)

Totalcomprehensiveloss — — — — (165) (2,569) (2,734)

At 31 December 2013 13,414 18,543 21,898 1,861 (3,072) (46,406) 6,238

1 Reservetransferforexercised,forfeitedandexpiredoptions.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 .  BAS IS  OF  PREPARAT ION

The consolidated Group financial statements are for the year ended 31 December 2013. They have been
prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International Financial
Reporting InterpretationsCommittee (IFRIC) interpretationsasadoptedby theEuropeanUnionandcompany
lawapplicabletocompaniesreportingunderIFRSasat31December2013.

TheGroup’sbusinessactivities, togetherwith the factors likely toaffect its futuredevelopment,performance
andpositionaresetoutintheStrategicReportonpages2to11.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts up to 31 December 2016 which indicate the Company will
haveaccesstosufficientcash.Forecastrevenueincludesexistingcontractsandnewrevenuestreamsarising
fromcontractswhichareinthenegotiationphase;however,thereisuncertaintythatcontractnegotiationswill
befinalised.

Iftherearematerialadversevariancesagainsttheseforecasts,theCompanyisabletoinstitutemeasurestotake
mitigatingactionstomanagecashresourcesandaccessadditionalfundingfromstrategicsourcesifrequired.

The Directors have concluded that the combination of these circumstances represent a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Nevertheless after
makingenquiries,theDirectorshaveareasonableexpectationthattheCompanywillhaveaccesstoadequate
resources tocontinue inoperationalexistence for the foreseeable future.For these reasons, theycontinue to
adoptthegoingconcernbasisinpreparingtheannualreportandaccounts.

Standards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 January 2013

Thefollowingstandards,amendmentsandinterpretationsbecameeffectivein2013:

Standard/interpretation Content

Applicablefor
financialyears
beginningon/after

IAS19(RevisedJune2011)* EmployeeBenefits 1January2013

IFRS13* FairValueMeasurement 1January2013

AmendmentstoIAS12* DeferredTax:RecoveryofUnderlyingAssets 1January2013

AmendmentstoIFRS7* Disclosures–OffsettingFinancialAssetsandLiabilities 1January2013

AmendmentstoIFRS1* GovernmentLoans 1January2013

AnnualImprovements2009–2011Cycle 1January2013

*TheadoptionoftheseStandardsandInterpretationshashadnomaterialimpactonthefinancialstatementsoftheGroup.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not 
been early adopted by the Group in the 31 December 2013 financial statements

Atthedateofauthorisationofthesefinancialstatementscertainnewstandards,amendmentsandinterpretations
toexistingstandardshavebeenpublishedbutarenotyeteffective.TheGrouphasnotearlyadoptedanyof
thesepronouncements.ThenewStandards,amendmentsandinterpretationsthatareexpectedtoberelevant
totheGroup’sfinancialstatementsareasfollows:

Standard/interpretation Content
Applicableforfinancial
yearsbeginningon/after

AmendmentstoIAS36* RecoverableAmountDisclosuresforNon-FinancialAssets 1January2014

IFRS10 ConsolidatedFinancialStatements 1January2014

IFRS11* JointArrangements 1January2014

IFRS12* DisclosureofInterestsinOtherEntities 1January2014

IAS27*(Revised) SeparateFinancialStatements 1January2014

IAS28*(Revised) InvestmentsinAssociatesandJointVentures 1January2014

AmendmenttoIFRS10,IFRS11
andIFRS12

TransitionGuidance 1January2014

AmendmenttoIFRS10* InvestmentEntities 1January2014

AmendmentstoIAS32* OffsettingFinancialAssetsandFinancialLiabilities 1January2014

IFRS9 Financialinstruments NoMandatoryEffectiveDate

AmendmentstoIFRS7andIFRS9 MandatoryEffectiveDateandTransitionDisclosures 1January2015

*NotexpectedtoberelevanttotheGroup.
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IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments: Classification and measurement’

InNovember2009,theBoard issuedthefirstpartof IFRS9relatingtotheclassificationandmeasurementof
financial assets. IFRS9will ultimately replace IAS39. The standard requires an entity to classify its financial
assetsonthebasisof theentity’sbusinessmodel formanagingthefinancialassetsandthecontractualcash
flowcharacteristicsofthefinancialasset,andsubsequentlymeasuresthefinancialassetsaseitheratamortised
costor fair value.Thenewstandarddoesnot includeamandatoryeffectivedate.TheGroup’smanagement
haveyettoassesstheimpactofthisnewstandardontheGroup’sconsolidatedfinancialstatements.However,
Managementdoesnotexpectto implement IFRS9untilallof itschaptershavebeenpublishedandtheycan
comprehensivelyassesstheimpactofallchanges.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS10replaces theportionof IAS27 ‘ConsolidatedandSeparateFinancialStatements’ thataddresses the
accountingforconsolidatedfinancialstatements.ItalsoincludestheissuesraisedinSIC-12‘Consolidation—
Special Purpose Entities’. IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including
specialpurposeentities.Thechanges introducedby IFRS10will requiremanagement toexercisesignificant
judgement to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a
parent, compared with the requirements that were in IAS 27. This standard becomes effective for annual
periodsbeginningonorafter1January2014.Given thecurrentconditions (allsubsidiariesare100%owned
andoperated)Managementdoesnotexpectanyimpactfromadoptingthisstandard.

2 .  SUMMARY OF S IGNIF ICANT ACCOUNTING POL IC IES

Consolidation
SubsidiariesareallentitiesoverwhichtheGrouphasthepowertogovernthefinancialandoperatingpolicies
generallyaccompanyingashareholdingofoveronehalfofthevotingrights.Subsidiariesarefullyconsolidated
fromthedateonwhichcontrolistransferredtotheGroupandtheGroup’saccountingpoliciesareappliedfor
thepurposesofconsolidationofthesubsidiaries’results.Theyaredeconsolidatedonthedatecontrolceases.

In the event of an acquisition, the Group would use the acquisition method of accounting to recognise a
subsidiary. The cost of an acquisition is measured by the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issuedand liabilities incurredor assumedat thedateof exchange. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisitiondateirrespectiveoftheextentofanynon-controllinginterest.Theexcessofthecostofacquisition
over the fair valueof theGroup’s shareof the identifiablenet assets acquired is recordedasgoodwill. If the
costof theacquisition is lessthanthefairvalueof thenetassetsof thesubsidiaryacquired,thedifference is
recogniseddirectlyinprofitorloss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group
companiesareeliminatedexceptwherelossesmayprovideevidenceofimpairment.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functionalandpresentationalcurrency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The functional
currenciesofGroupentitiesareUSDollars,AustralianDollarsandSterling.TheparentCompany’s functional
currencyisSterlingandtheGroup’spresentationalcurrencyisUSDollar.

(b) Transactionsandbalances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
atthedatesofthetransactions.Foreignexchangegainsandlossesarerecognisedinprofitor loss, including
those resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at reporting period end
exchangeratesofmonetaryassetsandliabilitiesdenominatedinforeigncurrencies.

(c) Groupcompanies
The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentationcurrencyaretranslatedintothepresentationalcurrencyasfollows:

i. Assets, liabilitiesandequitybalances foreachbalancesheetpresentedare translatedat theclosing
rateatthedateofthebalancesheet.

ii. Income and expenses for each consolidated statement of comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates during the reporting period where this approximates actual exchange
movements,otherwiseactualratesareused,and;
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

iii. All resultingexchangedifferencesarising fromthe translationof thenet investment in foreignentities
aretakentoequity.Differencesinitiallybroughttoequityarerecycledtotheconsolidatedstatementof
comprehensiveincomeondisposaloftheforeignoperations.

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption in IFRS 1 which allows all foreign exchange differences
on consolidation to be set at zero at transition and the foreign exchange reserve therefore only shows post
transitionforeignexchangedifferences.

Segmental reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). The CODM is the person or group that allocates resources to and
assessestheperformanceoftheoperatingsegmentsofanentity.TheGrouphasdeterminedthatitsCODMis
theBoardofDirectorsoftheGroup.

ThesegmentalinformationprovidedtotheBoardcanbefoundinNote3–Segmentalreporting.

Revenue recognition
RevenueisthefairvalueofthetotalamountreceivablebytheGroupforsuppliesofproductswhenrisksand
rewardsofownershiphavebeentransferredandforservices,thetimingofrevenuerecognitiondependsonthe
assessedstageofcompletionofcontractactivityatthebalancesheetdate.VATorsimilarlocaltaxesandtrade
discountsareexcluded.

Revenue comprises income from the supply of products, license payments, consultancy income and royalty
income(excludingVAT)incurredinthenormalcourseofbusiness.

Licensing
Licenseincomeisrecognisedonastraight-linebasisovertheperiodtowhichthelicensepaymentrelates.The
amountofanyprepaymentassociatedwiththelicenseagreementisdeferredandrecognisedasrevenueover
theperiodasabove.Thisdeferredincomeisincludedin‘otherliabilities’.

Royalties
Royalties are earned on manufacture by the Group’s licensees of mobile telephones, tablet PCs, personal
computersandmonitorsandvideoprocessingchipsincorporatingtheCompany’sintellectualproperty.Royalty
revenues are recognised when the Company receives notification from licensees of product manufacture, or
wheretherehasbeensufficient informationgivenbythe licenseefor therevenuetobemeasuredreliablyand
have a sufficient degree of certainty. In the case where royalty advance payments are received, the Group
recognises theadvance royaltyasacustomerprepaymentand it is recordedasa liability,even if there isno
contractual obligation for the Company to reimburse the unused advance royalty to the licensee. Once the
licensee reports product manufacture, the corresponding amount of the royalty advance is recognised as
revenue in theperiod forwhichnotification is received fromthe licensee.VATorsimilar local taxesand trade
discountsareexcluded.

Discounts from advertising transactions (Yabazam content bundled with Yabazam desktop icons which are
provided for in exchange for a discount on TriDef technology royalty payments) are recognised as advertising
royaltyrevenueuponthenotificationofproductmanufactureandincludedinroyalties.TheGrouprecordsarelated
marketingexpenseofthedifferencebetweenthefairvalueofthegoodsdeliveredandthediscountedsalesprice.

Software sales
SoftwaresalesrevenuesareearnedonconsumerandresellerpurchasesoftheTriDef3DPCsoftwareproducts
currently soldon theTriDef.comwebsite. The revenues are recognisedwhen theGroup receives transaction
confirmationfromthepaymentprocessorswhichcausestheautomaticelectronicdeliveryofthe licensecode
totheconsumertounlockthesoftwareforuse.

Product sales
Productrevenue isthefairvalueofthetotalamountreceivablebytheGroupforthesupplyof3Dcontentvia
Blu-raydisc salesof certainYabazam.com titles.A fulfilment vendor (Amazon)holds inventory to fulfil orders
and processes payment transactions directly with consumers in the majority of sales instances. Revenue is
recognisedoncetheorderhasbeenpaidandfulfilledbasedonreportstotheGroup.

Consulting
Consultancy income is recognised on a stage of completion basis. The majority of the Group’s consulting
contractsinvolvedetailedspecificationsoftheworktobeperformedortheitemstobedeliveredaspartofthe
agreement.Additionally,theagreementsaregenerallynegotiatedwithapplicable“milestonepayments”relevant
totheagreedvalueforcompletingtheitemsidentified.
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Other Revenue – Yabazam fees
YabazamSubscription fees,consistingprimarilyofmonthlycharges foraccessto theYabazammovieservice
andpertitledownloadfees,arerecognisedasrevenueastheserviceisprovidedorwhenthedownloadoccurs.

Interest income and expense recognition
Interestincomeandexpenditurearereportedonanaccrualsbasis.Dividendsreceivedwouldberecognisedat
thetimeoftheirdistribution.

Operating expenses
Operatingexpensesarerecognisedinprofitorlossuponutilisationoftheserviceoratthedateoftheirorigin.

Intangibles
The Group has registered a number of patents that are initially recognised at cost and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is over a five-year period on a straight-line
basis and is recognised in the ‘Depreciation/amortisation expenses’ line of the consolidated statement of
comprehensiveincome.

TheGroupalsorecognisesexternalwebsiteandapplicationdevelopmentcostsasintangibles.Amortisationof
theseintangiblesisoverathreetofiveyearperiodonastraight-linebasisandisrecognisedinthe‘Depreciation/
amortisationexpenses’lineoftheconsolidatedstatementofcomprehensiveincome.

Internally generated intangible assets
An internally generated intangible asset arising from development (or the development phase) of an internal
projectisrecognisedif,andonlyif,allofthefollowinghavebeendemonstrated:

• thetechnicalfeasibilityofcompletingtheintangibleassetsothatitwillbeavailableforuseorsale;

• theintentiontocompletetheintangibleassetanduseorsellit;

• theabilitytouseorselltheintangibleasset;

• howtheintangibleassetwillgenerateprobablefutureeconomicbenefits;

• the availability of adequate technical, financial andother resources to complete thedevelopment and to
useorselltheintangibleasset;and

• theabilitytomeasurereliablytheexpenditureattributabletotheintangibleassetduringitsdevelopment.

Theamountinitiallyrecognisedforinternallygeneratedintangibleassetsisthesumoftheexpenditureincurred
fromthedatewhenthe intangibleasset firstmeets therecognitioncriteria listedabove.Expensescapitalised
consistofemployeecosts incurredondevelopingsoftwareandaportionofappropriateoverhead.Whereno
internallygeneratedintangibleassetcanberecognised,developmentexpenditureischargedtoprofitorlossin
theperiodinwhichitisincurred.Theexpectedlifeofinternallygeneratedintangibleassetsvariesbasedonthe
anticipatedusefullife,currentlyrangingfromtwotofiveyears.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internallygenerated intangibleassetsare reportedatcost lessaccumulated
amortisationandaccumulatedimpairmentlosses.Amortisationischargedonastraight-linebasisoverthreeto
fiveyearlivesandisreportedinthe‘Depreciation/Amortisationexpenses’lineoftheconsolidatedstatementof
comprehensiveincome.

Researchexpenditureisrecognisedasanexpenseintheperiodinwhichitisincurred.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any provision for
impairment.Depreciation isprovidedusingthestraight-linemethodtowriteoff thecostof theasset lessany
residualvalueoveritsusefuleconomiclifeasfollows:

Shortleaseholdimprovements  Theshorteroftheusefullifeoftheassetorthetermofthelease
Fixtures,fittingsandequipment  3to7years

Theresidualvalue,usefuleconomiclifeandthedepreciationmethodarereviewedateachfinancialyear-end.

Impairment testing of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairmentandsomearetestedatcash-generatingunitlevel.Allindividualassetsorcash-generatingunitsare
testedforimpairmentwhenevereventsorchangesincircumstancesindicatethatthecarryingamountmaynot
berecoverable.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

Animpairmentlossisrecognisedfortheamountbywhichtheasset’sorcash-generatingunit’scarryingamount
exceedsitsrecoverableamount,whichisthehigheroffairvaluelesscoststosellandvalue-in-use.Todetermine
the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and
determinesasuitableinterestrateinordertocalculatethepresentvalueofthosecashflows.Thedatausedfor
impairmenttestingproceduresaredirectlylinkedtotheGroup’slatestapprovedbudget,adjustedasnecessary
to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined
individuallyforeachcash-generatingunitandreflecttheirrespectiveriskprofilesasassessedbymanagement.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
that cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the
cash-generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently reassessed for indications
that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the
cash-generatingunit’srecoverableamountexceedsitscarryingamount.

Taxation
Incometaxontheprofitorlossfortheyearcomprisescurrentanddeferredtax.

Currenttaxistheexpectedtaxpayableonthetaxableincomefortheyearusingratessubstantiallyenactedat
thebalancesheetdate,andanyadjustmentstotaxpayableinrespectofprioryears.

Deferredtaxisprovidedinfullontemporarydifferencesbetweenthecarryingamountsofassetsandliabilities
in theGroup financial statements and the amounts used for taxationpurposes.Deferred tax is calculatedat
the tax rates thathavebeenenactedorsubstantiallyenactedat thebalancesheetdate.Deferred taxassets
areonly recognised to theextent that it isprobable that future taxableprofitswill beavailableagainstwhich
deductible temporarydifferencescanbeutilised.Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences,unlessspecificallyexempt.

Deferredtaxassetsandliabilitiesareoffsetwhenthere isa legallyenforceablerighttosetoffcurrenttaxation
assetsagainstcurrenttaxationliabilitiesanditistheintentiontosettletheseonanetbasis.

Tax is recognised inprofitor lossexcept to theextent that it relates to items recogniseddirectly inequity, in
whichcaseitisrecognisedinequity.

Currentincometaxassetsandliabilitiescomprisethoseobligationstofiscalauthoritiesinthecountriesinwhich
theGroupcarriesout itsoperationsordoesbusiness.Theyarecalculatedaccordingtothetaxratesandtax
lawsapplicabletothefiscalyearandthecountrytowhichtheyrelate.Allchangestocurrenttax liabilitiesare
recognisedasacomponentoftaxexpenseintheconsolidatedstatementofcomprehensiveincome.

Changesindeferredtaxassetsorliabilitiesarerecognisedasacomponentoftaxexpenseintheconsolidated
statementofcomprehensiveincome,exceptwheretheyrelatetoitemsthatarechargedorcrediteddirectlyto
equity(suchastherevaluationofland)inwhichcasetherelateddeferredtaxisalsochargedorcrediteddirectly
toequity.

The Group has taken advantage of the initial recognition exemptions in IAS 12 prohibiting the recognition of
deferredtaxontemporarydifferencesarisingontheinitialrecognitionofanassetorliabilityinatransactionthat
isnotabusinesscombinationand,atthetimeofthetransaction,affectsneitheraccountingnortaxableprofit.

Financial assets
Financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. Trade and other
receivablesareinitiallyrecognisedatfairvaluelesstransactioncostsandsubsequentlyatamortisedcost less
any impairment. An assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at each balance sheet date whether
or not there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Provision
againsttradereceivablesismadewhenthereisobjectiveevidencethattheGroupwillnotbeabletocollectall
amountsduetoitinaccordancewiththeoriginaltermsofthosereceivables.Theamountofthewrite-downis
determinedas thedifferencebetween theasset’s carryingamount and thepresent valueof estimated future
cashflows.

De-recognition of financial instruments occurs when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expireoraretransferredandsubstantiallyalloftherisksandrewardsofownershiphavebeentransferred.An
assessmentforimpairmentisundertakenatleastateachbalancesheetdatewhetherornotthereisobjective
evidencethatafinancialassetoraGroupoffinancialassetsisimpaired.
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Financial liabilities
TheGroup’sfinancialliabilitiesincludetradeandotherpayables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual agreements of the
instrument.Allinterestrelatedchargesarerecognisedasanexpenseinprofitorloss.

Tradepayablesare recognised initially at their fair valueandsubsequentlymeasuredat amortisedcosts less
settlementpayments.

Dividend distributions to shareholders are included when the dividends are approved by the shareholders
meeting.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cashandcashequivalentsincludecashatbankandinhandaswellasshorttermbankdeposits.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Other provisions are recognised when the present obligations arising from legal or constructive commitment
resulting frompastevents,willprobably leadtoanoutflowofeconomicresources fromtheGroupwhichcan
beestimatedreliably.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation,basedonthemostreliableevidenceavailableatthebalancesheetdate.

Allprovisionsarereviewedateachbalancesheetdateandadjustedtoreflectthecurrentbestestimates.

Share based employee compensation
The Group operates equity settled share based compensation plans for remuneration of its employees. All
employeeservicesreceivedinexchangeforthegrantofanyshare-basedcompensationaremeasuredattheir
fairvalues.Theseareindirectlydeterminedbyreferencetotheshareoptionawarded.Theirvalueisappraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (e.g. profitability or sales
growthtargets).

TheGroup’sshareoptionschemesprovideforanexercisepriceequal toeithera) theaveragemiddlemarket
priceoftheGroup’ssharesoverthefivedealingdayspriortothedateofgrantorparvalue,whicheverishigher
orb)theaveragemiddlemarketpriceoftheGroup’ssharesonthedateofthegrantorparvalue,whicheveris
higher,dependingontheapplicableplanrules for theemployee’s jurisdiction.Thevestingperiodrangesfrom
thedateofgrantup to five years. If options remainunexercisedafteraperiodof five years from thedateof
grant, theoptionsexpireandare returned to theunusedshareoptionpool. Furthermore, if anoptionholder
leavestheGroupongoodtermsbeforetheiroptionsvest,theunexercisedandunvestedoptionsareforfeited
uptosixmonthsafterthedateoftheirdeparture.

The Group has a current share option scheme under which options have been granted on various dates
between4December2009and9July2012.

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised as an expense in profit or loss with a corresponding
credit to a share based payment reserve, net of deferred tax where applicable. If vesting periods or other
vestingconditionsapply,theexpenseisallocatedoverthevestingperiod,basedonthebestavailableestimate
ofthenumberofsharesoptionsexpectedtovest.Non-marketvestingconditionsareincludedinassumptions
aboutthenumberofoptionsthatareexpectedtobecomeexercisable.Estimatesaresubsequentlyrevised, if
there isany indication that thenumberofshareoptionsexpected tovestdiffers frompreviousestimates.No
adjustmenttoexpenserecognisedinpriorperiodsismadeiffewershareoptionsultimatelyvestthanoriginally
estimated.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received, net of any directly attributable transaction costs up
tothenominalvalueof theshares issued,arereallocatedtosharecapitalwithanyexcessbeingrecordedas
additionalsharepremium.

Employment benefit plans 
Definedcontributionplans
TheGrouppays fixedcontributions into independententities in relation toseveralstateplansand insurances
for individual employees. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay contributions in addition
to its fixed contributions, which are recognised as an expense in the period that relevant employee services
arereceived.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies
The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Group that
havethemostsignificanteffectonthefinancialstatements.

Capitalisationofdevelopmentcosts
Management monitors progress of internal research and development projects. Significant judgement is
required in distinguishing research from the development phase. Development costs are recognised as an
assetwhenallthecriteriaaremet,whereasresearchcostsareexpensedasincurred.

TheGroup’smanagementalsomonitorswhethertherecognitionrequirementsfordevelopmentcostscontinue
tobemet.This isnecessaryas theeconomicsuccessofanyproductdevelopment isuncertainandmaybe
subjecttofuturetechnicalproblemsafterthetimeofrecognition.

ForfurtherdetailsrefertoNote9.

Estimation uncertainty
Whenpreparing the financial statementsmanagementmakesanumberofestimatesandassumptionsabout
recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The actual results may differ from
the judgements, estimates and assumptions made by management, and will seldom equal the estimated
results. Informationaboutestimatesandassumptionsthathavethemostsignificanteffectonrecognitionand
measurementofassets,liabilities,incomeandexpensesarediscussedbelow.

Impairment
Animpairmentlossisrecognisedfortheamountbywhichtheasset’sorcashgeneratingunit’scarryingamount
exceedsitsrecoverableamount.Todeterminetherecoverableamount,managementestimatesexpectedfuture
cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the
presentvalueofthosecashflows.Intheprocessofmeasuringexpectedfuturecashflowsmanagementmakes
assumptionsaboutfutureoperatingresults.Theseassumptionsrelatetofutureeventsandcircumstances.The
actual resultsmayvary,andmaycausesignificantadjustmentstotheGroup’sassetswithinthenext financial
year.Inmostcases,determiningtheapplicablediscountrateinvolvesestimatingtheappropriateadjustmentto
marketriskandtheappropriateadjustmenttoasset-specificriskfactors.

ForfurtherdetailsrefertoNote9.

Revenuerecognition
Forconsultingprojects,managementuses judgement toassessthevalueof thestageofcompletionateach
balancesheetdate.Thisassessmentrequirestheexpectedtotalcontractrevenuesandcoststobeestimated
basedonthecurrentprogressofthecontract.

Recoverabilityofdeferredtaxassets
TheGroupassessesrecoverabilityofdeferredtaxassetswithreferencetoBoardapprovedforecastsoffuture
taxableprofitsandpasthistoryoftaxlossutilisationbytheGroup’ssubsidiaries.TheGrouphasrecogniseda
deferred taxasset in its financialstatements to theextent that it isprobable that future taxableprofitswillbe
availableagainstwhichdeductibletemporarydifferencescanbeutilised.

Equity
Equitycomprisesthefollowing:

• “Issuedcapital”representsthenominalvalueofequityshares.

• “Sharepremium” represents theexcessovernominalvalueof the fair valueofconsideration received for
equityshares,netofexpensesoftheshareissue.

• “Mergerreserve”resultsfromtheacquisitionofDynamicDigitalDepthInc. in2002beingthepremiumon
sharesissuedasconsiderationqualifyingformergerreliefundertheCompaniesAct.

• “Sharebasedpayment reserve” representsequity-settledshare-basedemployee remunerationuntil such
shareoptionsareexercised,andaccountedforunderIFRS2.

• “Translation reserve” represents the differences arising from translation of investments in overseas
subsidiaries.

• “Retainedearnings”representsretainedprofitsandlosses.
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3 .  SEGMENTAL REPORT ING
Inaccordancewith IFRS8,operatingsegmentsare reporting inamanner that isconsistentwith the internal
reportingprovidedtotheBoardofDirectors,thechiefoperatingdecisionmaker.Managementinformationthat
is regularly reported to theBoard for thepurposesofallocatingresourcesandmonitoringperformance is the
monthly board pack. The Board pack contains an analysis of revenue for the Group’s activities. At present,
giventhesizeoftheGroup,costsofgoodssoldandoperatingexpensescannotbeallocatedonareasonable
basistothesegmentsbelowand,asaresult,thesegmentalanalysisislimitedtotheGroupgrossprofit.

The3Dcontentpublishingandemerging2DtechnologysegmentsdescribedintheStrategicReportdonotyet
contributeover10%ofGrouprevenuesandthereforeseparatedisclosureisnotyetprovided.

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Revenues:

3Dtechnologylicensefees — —

RoyaltiesfromOEMunitsshipments 3,132 8,339

Otherlicensingroyalties 51 64

Consumersoftwareproductsales 203 210

RevenuefromtheGroup’s3Dtechnologies: 3,386 8,613

Consultingrevenues — —

Otherrevenuestreams 14 7

Totalrevenue 3,400 8,620

Costofgoodssold (39) (244)

Grossprofit 3,361 8,376

Margin 99% 97%

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Identifiable assets:

Tradereceivables:
Licensing 59 15
Other — —

Total 59 15

IntangibleAssets–licensing 3,047 2,390
IntangibleAssets–publishing 328 202
Otherunallocatedassets 4,350 6,500

Totalnetassets 7,784 9,107

Identifiable liabilities:
Deferredrevenues–customerdeposits:
Licensing 260 188
Otherunallocatedliabilities 1,286 1,654

Totalliabilities 1,546 1,842

AllotherassetsandliabilitiesoftheGroupinadditiontotheoperatingexpensesarenotprovidedorreviewed
atasegmentallevel.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

Majorcustomers
Thecustomerscontributingover10%tothegrossrevenuesoftheGroupareasnotedinthefollowingtable:

2013
$000 %

2012
$000 %

CustomerA
(2013/12:100%Royalties) 2,391 70.3% 3,921 45.5%

CustomerB
(2013/12:100%Royalties) 377 11.1% 445 5.2%

CustomerC
(2013/12:100%Royalties) 139 4.1% 3,034 35.2%

Majorcustomertotal 2,907 85.5% 7,400 85.9%

Allothersources 493 14.5% 1,220 14.1%

Totalgrossrevenues 3,400 100.0% 8,620 100.0%

Regionalbreakdown
The majority of the Group’s revenues (2013: 95%; 2012: 97%) are from customers based in the Asia
Pacificregion.

4 .  REmUNERAT iON Of kEy mANAgEmENT pERSONNEl

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Emoluments 747 853

Emoluments–highestpaiddirector 355 412

Pensioncosts–definedcontributionplans 21 22

Socialsecuritycontributions 39 24

Sharebasedpayment–shareoptions 253 361

1,415 1,672

Directors and officers are considered key management personnel. The amount set out above includes
remuneration in connection with the full-time employment of the Chief Executive Officer (Director), Chief
TechnologyOfficerandChiefFinancialOfficer(appointedDirectorJuly2012).Thepensionplanisonlyavailable
toemployeesoftheAustraliansubsidiaries,ofwhich1isincludedintheabovelineitem(2012:1).
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5 .  ( lOSS) /pROf iT  bEfORE TAx

2013 2012

(Loss)/profitbeforetaxhasbeenarrivedataftercharging/(crediting): $’000 $’000

Foreignexchange(gain)/loss (68) 45

Depreciationandamortisation:

Depreciationofproperty,plantandequipment(Note10) 86 89

Amortisationofintangibleassets(Note9) 976 1,101

Employeebenefitsexpense:

Employeecosts(Note6) 4,604 5,639

Otheroperatingleases 403 362

Auditandnon-auditservices:

FeespayabletotheCompany’sauditorfortheauditoftheGroupaccounts 87 91

FeespayabletotheCompany’sauditoranditsassociatesforotherservices:

TheauditoftheCompany’ssubsidiariespursuanttolegislation — —

Taxservices 56 82

Otherservicespursuanttolegislation — —

During the year the Group’s Australian subsidiary received a tax refund of research and development
expendituresfromtheAustralianGovernment,whereas in2012,ataxcreditwasearnedwhich iscarriedwith
thenetoperatinglosses(NOLs).Theotherincomecategoryincludestherefundof$369,000(2012:$nil).

Theresearchanddevelopmentrefundalongwithsubtenantrentalincomecomprisesthemajorityoftheincome
reportedas‘Otherincome’intheconsolidatedstatementofcomprehensiveincome.

Tax services provided by Grant Thornton included tax return preparation for US and Canada subsidiaries as
wellastaxadviceinconjunctionwiththedissolutionoftheCanadianholdingcompanyandupdatestothetax
lossreviewworkintheUSdiscussedinNote7.

6 .  EmplOyEES

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Employeecosts:

Wagesandsalaries 3,919 4,656

Pensioncosts 157 165

Socialsecuritycosts 102 85

Sharebasedpayments–shareoptions 426 733

4,604 5,639

Theaveragenumberofemployeesduringtheyearwasmadeupasfollows:

Dedicatedresearchanddevelopment 7 8

Hardwareengineering 2 2

Softwareengineering 6 7

Sales 6 6

Financeandadministration 6 8

Content 3 3

Totalstaff 30 34

Non-executivedirectors(NEDs) 5 5

Grandtotal 35 39

Totalnumberofemployees(excludingNEDs)atyearendwas27(2012:35).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

7 .  iNCOmE TAx

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Currenttax:

Currentyeartaxcharge 503 1,044

Totalcurrenttax 503 1,044

Deferredtaxassetmovement — (620)

Deferredtaxliabilitymovement 78 126

581 550

The tax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax as applied in the respective
tradingdomainswheretheGroupoperates.Thetaxchargeonordinaryactivitiesisexplainedbelow:

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

(Loss)/profitonordinaryactivitiesbeforetax (1,988) 1,314

(Loss)/profitat23.5%(2012:24.5%) (467) 322

Effectsof:

Higherforeigntaxrates (56) 74

Income/Expensesnotdeductiblefortaxpurposes (88) 88

Estimatedusageofsubsidiaryhistoricallossestocoverincometax (104) (830)

Taxlossescarriedforward 664 211

Movementofdeferredtaxasset(Note11) — (620)

Othertemporarydifferences 129 261

Foreignwithholdingtax 503 1,044

Taxchargeonordinaryactivities 581 550

Given that a large majority of the Group’s revenues are derived from licensees in Asia, foreign withholding
taxesdeductedatsourceonroyaltiesandlicensesfromthesecountriescreatethemajorityoftheincometax
expenserecordedintheGroupaccounts.ThesetaxeswillbeavailableasfutureforeigntaxcreditsfortheUS
subsidiaryandthereforearereflectedasincreasedfuturepotentialdeferredtaxassets(“DTA”).
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There are substantial unrelieved tax losses and tax credits of $42,658,000 (2012: $41,179,000) across the
Groupcompaniesassetoutbelow:

USA UK Australia Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At31December2013

Unrelievedtaxlosses&credits 15,4451 6,132 21,081 42,658

Localrateoftax 40%2 20% 30%

Potentialdeferredtaxasset 6,178 1,226 6,324 13,728

DTArecognised — — (1,096) (1,096)

Unprovidedpotentialdeferredtaxasset 6,178 1,226 5,228 12,632

At31December2012

Unrelievedtaxlosses&credits 14,6161 5,413 21,150 41,179

Localrateoftax 40%2 23% 30%

Potentialdeferredtaxasset 5,846 1,245 6,345 13,436

DTArecognised — — (1,096) (1,096)

Unprovidedpotential
deferredtaxasset 5,846 1,245 5,249 12,340

1 During2011,theCompanyrevieweditstaxlossesconsistentwiththerequirementsofUStaxauthorities(InternalRevenue
CodeSection382).Thisreviewresultedinananticipated$3.5millionreductiontounrelievedtaxlosses(includedabove).

2 USeffectivetaxrateincludingfederalandstateincometaxesisanticipatedtobe40%basedoncurrenttaxlaw.

At 31 December 2013, the availability to offset unrelieved tax losses against future taxable trading profits
may be subject to restrictions in the respective tax jurisdictions. The entire deferred tax asset has not been
recognised due to the uncertainty of the timing and recoverability of the asset. The remaining asset will be
recoveredinlinewithfutureprofits.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

8 .  ( lOSS) /pROf iT  pER SHARE

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

(Loss)/profitfortheyearattributabletoequityshareholders (2,569) 764

(Loss)/profitpershare

Basic(centspershare) (1.86)cents 0.57cents

Diluted(centspershare) (1.86)cents 0.55cents

Shares Shares

Issuedordinarysharespar1patstartoftheyear 134,628,812 134,192,146

Ordinarysharesissuedintheyear 9,034,760 436,666

Totaloutstandingordinarysharesatendoftheyear 143,663,572 134,628,812

Weightedaveragenumberofordinarysharesfortheyear 138,221,427 134,293,685

Deferredshares:

Issueddeferredshares1atthestartandendoftheyear 74,416,547 74,416,547

Totalsharecapital(Issued&Outstanding) 218,080,119 209,045,359

1 DeferredShares:

 On5July2008 thesharecapitalof theCompanywassplit so thata totalof74,416,547ordinarysharesofpar
value10pencebecame74,416,547deferredsharesofparvalue9penceplus74,416,547newordinarysharesof
parvalue1penny.

 TheholdersofthedeferredsharesshallnotbeentitledtoreceiveanydividendoutoftheprofitsoftheCompany
available fordistribution.Onadistributionofassetsonawinding-uporotherreturnofcapital (otherwisethanon
conversion or redemption or purchase by the Company of any of its shares) the holders of the deferred shares
shallbeentitledtoreceivetheamountpaidupontheirsharesafterdistribution(incashorinspecie)totheholders
of the new ordinary shares the amount of £100,000,000 in respect of each new ordinary share held by them.
Thedeferredsharesshallnotentitle theirholderstoany furtherorotherrightofparticipation in theassetsof the
Company.Theholdersofdeferredsharesshallnotbeentitled to receivenoticeofor toattend (eitherpersonally
orbyproxy)anygeneralmeetingoftheCompanyortovote(eitherpersonallyorbyproxy)onanyresolutiontobe
proposed.Nocertificateswillbeissuedinrespectofthedeferredshares.Thedilutedlosspersharedoesnotdiffer
fromthebasiclosspershareasthesesharesareanti-dilutive.

For 2013, the diluted loss per share does not differ from the basic loss per share as the exercise of share
optionswouldhave theeffectof reducing the losspershareand is thereforenotdilutiveunder the termsof
IAS33.For2012, thedilutedprofitpershare includes theeffectofoutstanding, vested, in-the-moneyshare
optionsattheendoftheperiod(4,270,833).
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9 .  iNTANgiblE  ASSETS

Capitalised
development

costs Patents
Other

intangibles Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Cost

At1January2012 4,915 308 171 5,394

Additions 1,639 — 169 1,808

Exchangeratedifferences 2 — — 2

At31December2012 6,556 308 340 7,204

Additions 1,597 24 231 1,852

Disposals (361) — — (361)

Exchangeratedifferences (94) — (2) (96)

At31December2013 7,698 332 569 8,599

Amortisation

At1January2012 3,169 308 32 3,509

Chargefortheyear 1,017 — 84 1,101

Exchangeratedifferences 2 — — 2

At31December2012 4,188 308 116 4,612

Chargefortheyear 908 — 68 976

Disposals (338) — — (338)

Exchangeratedifferences (78) — (1) (79)

At31December2013 4,680 308 183 5,171

Netbookvalue

At31December2011 1,746 — 139 1,885

At31December2012 2,368 — 224 2,592

At31December2013 3,018 24 386 3,428

OtherintangiblesincludeexternallydevelopedwebsitesandSmartTVapplicationdevelopmentfortheGroup.
Thereisnoimpairmenttotheintangiblesinanyofthereportedperiods.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

10 .  pROpERTy,  plANT ANd EqUipmENT

Leasehold
improvements

Furniture,fittingsand
equipment Total

$’000 $’000 $’000

Cost

At1January2012 79 805 884

Additions 14 51 65

Disposals — (5) (5)

Exchangeratedifferences 1 12 13

At31December2012 94 863 957

Additions — 45 45

Disposals (2) (39) (41)

Exchangeratedifferences (12) (92) (104)

At31December2013 80 777 857

Depreciation

At1January2012 33 689 722

Chargedintheyear 15 74 89

Disposals — (5) (5)

Exchangeratedifferences 1 11 12

At31December2012 49 769 818

Chargedintheyear 24 62 86

Disposals (2) (37) (39)

Exchangeratedifferences (9) (86) (95)

At31December2013 62 708 770

Netbookvalue

At31December2011 46 116 162

At31December2012 45 94 139

At31December2013 18 69 87

Allassetslistedabovearefreeofanymortgageorcharge.
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11 .  dEfERREd TAx ASSET

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Deferredtaxasset:

OpeningbalanceJanuary1 1,096 476

Movementindeferredtaxasset — 620

Deferredtaxasset–Losses 1,096 1,096

Based on management’s review of the subsidiaries and the fact that the Australian subsidiary has utilised
accruednetoperatinglossesinrecentperiodsfortaxpurposes,aDTAof$1,096,000hasbeenmaintainedin
2013 (2012: $1,096,000) related to recently revised business model forecasts of profitability and anticipated
taxlossusage.

12 .  iNvENTORy

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Finishedgoods 6 7

The cost of inventory recognised as an expense and included in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to $337 (2012:
$2,000).Therewerenowrite-offsduringtheyear.

Therehasbeennoimpairmentchargerecognisedinrelationtoinventory.

13 .  TRAdE ANd OTHER RECE ivAblES

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Tradereceivables 59 15

Unbilledreceivables 328 1,492

Prepayments 88 142

Otherreceivables 31 29

506 1,678

ThewholeofthetradereceivablesamountwasinvoicedinUSdollars.

100%ofthetradereceivablesrelatetotheUSsubsidiary.Theunbilledreceivablesrepresentrevenueaccrued
basedonroyalty reports for the fourthquarter.The fourthquarter royalty reportsarereceivedand invoiced in
Januaryofthefollowingyear.

Thefollowingfinancialassetsareoverdueforreceipt.Thefairvalueofreceivablesisnotmateriallydifferentfrom
thecarryingvalueshown.TheGroup’sreceivablesareunsecured.

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Overduetradereceivables

Notmorethan3months 59 —

Morethan3monthsbutnotmorethan6months — —

Morethan6monthsbutnotmorethan1year — —

59 —

Receivables which are past due are not deemed to be impaired as they are with customers with positive
creditworthiness.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

14 .  f iNANCiAl iNSTRUmENTS

Risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to continue as a going
concernwhilstmaximisingthereturntostakeholdersthroughtheeffectivemanagementofcapitalraisedthrough
share issues.TheBoard’sfinancialriskmanagementobjective istomaximisefinancialassetsandtominimise
financial liabilities whilst not engaging in speculation. The Board regularly reviews the policies for managing
financialriskandassessesifanyadditionalchangesshouldbemade.Themostsignificantriskarisingfromthe
Group’sfinancialinstrumentsisforeigncurrencyrisk.

Categories of financial instrument

2013
$’000 $’000

Financialassets:

Loansandreceivables 59 15

Prepaymentsandotherreceivables 447 1,663

506 1,678

Cashandcashequivalents 2,661 3,595

Financialliabilities:

Current

Tradepayablesatamortisedcost 148 124

Otheraccruedliabilities 779 1,175

927 1,299

Foreign currency risk
ThecashbalancescarriedwithintheGroupcomprisethefollowingcurrencyholdings:

2013
$’000

2012
$’000

Sterling 1,332 1,425

USdollars 1,037 1,238

Australiandollars 292 932

2,661 3,595

Thepresentationalcurrencyof theGroup isUSdollars,while the functionalcurrencyof theparentCompany
is sterling. As a result of its activities in North America and Asia Pacific, the Group is mainly exposed to
fluctuationsinboththeAustraliandollarandsterlingagainsttheUSdollar.TheGroup’sphilosophywithrespect
toforeigncurrencyriskistoholditscashandanyshort-termdepositsthatmaybemadefromtimetotime,in
thecurrenciesofanticipatedexpenditure.Theexposure is thusminimisedandconsidered tobe insignificant.
TheexposurethereforeoccurswhenthefunctionalcurrencyoperationsoftheGroup’sinternationalentitiesare
consolidatedintotheGroup’spresentationalcurrencyforreportingpurposes.

Thesensitivityanalysisbelowhasbeenbasedontheexposuretoexchangeratesfornon-derivativeinstruments
at thebalance sheet date.A10% increaseor decrease is usedwhen reporting exchange rate risk internally
tokeymanagementpersonneland representsmanagement’sassessmentof the reasonablepossiblechange
inexchange rateswhenconsideredagainst thebackgroundofexchange ratemovement for theUSdollar in
2012/13.

With a 10% movement of the US dollar against the Australian dollar and with all other variables constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 would move by $3,000 (2012: $166,000), and the
movement in shareholder’s equity would have been $ nil for both 2013 and 2012. With a 10% movement
of the US dollar against sterling and with all other variables constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended
31December2013wouldmoveby$95,000(2012:$30,000),andthemovementinshareholders’equitygiven
thatthefunctionalcurrencyissterlingwouldhavebeen$4,512,000(2012:$4,483,000).

Withbothcurrencies, therewouldbeacorrespondingdecrease in equity,which ismainly attributable to the
Group’sexposuretoexchangeratesonitstradereceivablesandcashbalances.
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Interest rate risk
The Group has historically financed its operations through equity fundraising. The cash balances are held at
floatinginterestratesbasedonLIBORanddeterminedbyitsbankinginstitutionsasfollows:

Interestrate
%

2013
$’000

Interestrate
%

2012
$’000

Cashatbankandinhand 0%to3.00% 2,661 0%to5.25% 3,595

TheGroupandoperatingentitieshadnocommittedborrowingfacilitiesat31December2013(2012:nil).

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk thatacounterpartywilldefaulton itscontractualobligations resulting in financial
loss to theGroup. Inorder tominimise this risk, theGroupendeavoursonly todealwithcompanies thatare
demonstrablycreditworthyandthis,togetherwiththeaggregatefinancialexposure,iscontinuouslymonitored.
Themaximumexposuretocreditriskisthevalueoftheoutstandingbalanceunderthecontract,whetherbilled
ornotasof thedateof thesestatements,amountingto$387,000(2012:$1,507,000).The institutionswhere
bankdepositsareheldareallconsideredtobelowriskhavingratingsbyMoody’sofAa2orbetter.

Where theGroupprovidesconsultancyservices, itnormally receivesstagedpayments fordevelopmentwork
resultingintradereceivablesthatmanagementconsidertobeoflowrisk.Managementdoesnotconsiderthat
thereisanyconcentrationofriskwithineithertrade,unbilledorotherreceivables.

Liquidity risk
The Group currently holds substantial cash balances in sterling, US dollars and Australian dollars to provide
fundingforoperationsandcontinueddevelopmentwork.TheGroupisdependentonincomefromcommercial
contracts and, to a decreasing extent, equity fundraising and Management expects to continue this method
successfullyinthefuture.

The liquidity risk ismonitoredbyManagementunder thesupervisionof theBoard.TheGroupandoperating
entitiesmaintainadequatereservesbyregularlymonitoringactualcash flowswithin the frameworkof liquidity
riskmanagementforshort,mediumandlong-termfundingandliquidityrequirements.

Thereisnomaterialdifferencebetweenthefairvaluesandthebookvaluesofthesefinancialinstruments.

Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concerninordertoprovidereturnsforshareholdersandbenefitsforothermembers.TheGroupwillalsoseek
tominimisethecostofcapitalandattempttooptimisethecapitalstructure.Currentlynodividendsarepaidto
shareholdersandshareissuesyieldcapitalforfurtherdevelopmentoftheGroup’sproducts.

ThecapitalstructureoftheGroupconsistsofcashandcashequivalentsandequityattributabletotheparent,
comprisingsharecapital, reservesand retainedearningsasdisclosed inNote19.TheChiefFinancialOfficer
regularlymonitorsthecapitalriskonbehalfoftheboard.

15 .  dEfERREd TAx l iAb il iTy

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

1January 543 417

Temporarydifferencesarisingfromcapitaliseddevelopmentcosts 296 163

Changeinenactedincometaxrateonpreviouslyrecogniseddeferred
taxliabilityarisingfromcapitaliseddevelopmentcosts (220) (37)

31December 619 543
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

16 .  TRAdE ANd OTHER pAyAblES

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Non-currentliabilities

 Deferredtaxliabilities 619 543

Currentliabilities

 Tradepayables 148 124

 Accruedexpenses 779 1,175

927 1,299

The accrued expenses include $260,000 (2012: $188,000) in prepaid license fees and advance royalty
paymentsfromlicensees.

The Group’s payables are unsecured, none are past due and the Directors consider that the carrying value
approximatestheirfairvalue.

17 .  OpERAT iNg lEASE COmmiTmENTS

2013 2012

$’000 $’000

Thefollowingpaymentsareduetobemadeonoperatinglease
commitmentsforlandandbuildings:

 Withinoneyear 365 403

 Twotofiveyears 201 579

566 982

The two operating entities in the US and Australia are obligated to short-term lease agreements for office
space.TheAustralianofficeleasewasrenewedin2009andexpiresinOctober2014whiletheUSofficelease
beganinJanuary2011andexpiresinJanuary2016.

The operating lease commitments represent the payments that these entities are obligated to make for the
remainingtermsofthecurrentleaseagreements.

18 .  SHARE bASEd pAymENTS

Unapproved current scheme
TheGrouphasanunapprovedshareoptionplanforthebenefitofDirectors,officersandemployeesthatallows
forthegrantingofupto10%oftheordinarysharesinissue.Thefollowingtableidentifiesthegrants,bygrant
date,thatremainoutstandingasof31December2013:

IssueDate
Options
inissue

Exercise
Price(pence) ExpiryDate:

4December2009 125,000 13.90 4December2014

8October2010 275,000 17.90 7October2015

5January2011 930,000 16.90 4January2016

5January20111 2,760,000 17.50 4January2016

15June2011 250,000 34.75 14June2016

14February20121 2,353,333 27.25 13February2017

12June2012 50,000 26.00 11June2017

9July20121 600,000 25.00 8July2017
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Detailsofthenumberofshareoptionsandtheweightedaverageexerciseprice(WAEP)outstandingduringthe
yearareasfollows:

2013WAEP 2012WAEP

Number p Number p

Outstandingatthebeginningoftheyear 9,980,000 19.0 7,346,666 14.7

Grantedduringtheyear — — 3,070,000 26.8

Exercisedduringtheyear (1,995,000) 10.5 (436,666) 10.5

Forfeitedduringtheyear (641,667) 13.9 — —

Outstandingattheyearend 7,343,333 21.8 9,980,000 19.0

Exercisableattheyearend 4,050,000 19.3 4,270,833 14.1

The fair value of options granted by the Company has been arrived at using the Black-Scholes model. The
assumptionsinherentintheuseofthismodelareasfollows:

• Theoptionlifeisassumedtobeattheendoftheallowedperiod;

• Historicalstaffturnoveristakenintoaccountwhendeterminingtheproportionofgrantedoptionsthatare
likelytovestbytheendoftheperiod;

• Following the application of the vesting probability assumptions, there are no further vesting conditions
otherthanremaininginemploymentwiththeCompanyduringthevestingperiod;

• Novariableschangeduringthelifeoftheoption(e.g.dividendyield);and

• Volatilityhasbeencalculatedoverthe5yearspriortothebalancesheetdate.

Dateofgrant
Vesting

period(yrs)
Datefully

vested
Exerciseprice

(pence)
Risk-free

rate
Sharepriceat
grant(pence)

Volatilityof
shareprice

Fairvalue
(pence)

Number
outstanding

9July121 3 9July15 25.0 1.75% 25.00 112% 19.96 600,000

12Jun12 3 12Jun15 26.0 1.75% 27.25 111% 20.67 50,000

14Feb121 3 14Feb15 27.25 1.75% 27.25 111% 21.65 2,353,333

15Jun11 2 15Jun13 34.75 1.87% 34.75 110% 27.50 250,000

5Jan111 3 5Jan14 17.5 2.75% 17.50 111% 14.06 2,760,000

5Jan11 3 5Jan14 16.9 2.75% 17.50 111% 13.52 930,000

8Oct10 4 8Oct14 17.9 2.75% 17.32 112% 13.86 137,500

8Oct10 3 8Oct13 17.9 2.75% 17.32 112% 13.86 137,500

4Dec09 2 4Dec11 13.9 2.64% 13.75 109% 11.00 125,000

The Group recognised total expenses of $426,000 (2012: $733,000) related to equity-settled share based
paymenttransactionsduringtheyear.

1 Thefinalgrantandexercisedatesmayvaryduetotheapplicablelocaltaxregulationsunderwhichthesharesaregranted.
Australianshareplanrulesrequireanofferandacceptanceofthegrant.Asaresult,theofficialgrantdatemaybeupto60
daysafterthisdateunderlocallawforAustralianrecipients.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

19 .  iSSUEd SHARE CApiTAl

The issued share capital of the Group is issued by the parent Company in Sterling. The attached parent
Companyaccountsprovide thecurrencyof issue reconciliationof thesharecapital.For theGroupaccounts,
the shares outstanding at the end of the period are converted to USD using the closing spot rate while the
transactionsduringtheperiodareconvertedusingtheaverageratefortheperiod.Theresultingdifferenceisa
foreignexchangeadjustmentonthebalancetranslation.

Nominal Premium

value netofcosts Total

Shares $’000 $’000 $’000

Deferredshares(par9p)

Inissue1January2012 74,416,547 10,352 — 10,352

Foreignexchangeadjustment — 477 — 477

31December2012 74,416,547 10,829 — 10,829

Foreignexchangeadjustment — 217 — 217

31December2013 74,416,547 11,046 — 11,046

Ordinaryshares(par1p)

Inissue1January2012 134,192,146 2,075 16,254 18,329

Issuedoptionexercises1 436,666 6 66 72

Foreignexchangeadjustment — 95 749 844

Inissue31December2012 134,628,812 2,176 17,069 19,245

Issuedoptionexercises1 1,995,000 33 311 344

Shareplacing2 7,039,760 116 821 937

Foreignexchangeadjustment — 43 342 385

Inissue31December2013 143,663,572 2,368 18,543 20,911

Allshares

Inissue31December2013 218,080,119 13,414 18,543 31,957

Inissue31December2012 209,045,359 13,005 17,069 30,074

KeyMovementsintheShareCapitalandSharePremiumaccountsareasfollows:
1 Ineachperiod,ordinaryshareswereissuedundertheCompany’sShareOptionPlan.

2 On17September2013,theCompanyraised£575,500beforeexpensesthroughaplacingof7,039,760ordinaryshares
of1pennyeachinthecapitaloftheCompanyataplacingpriceof8.175pencepershare.InterDigitalmadethisstrategic
investmentatthesametimeasenteringintoajointtechnologydevelopmentagreementwithDDD.

DeferredShares(par9p)
Adescriptionofandrelevantrightsattachedtothedeferredsharesasofthedateofthisreportareassetout
inNote8oftheconsolidatedGroupfinancialstatements.

Ordinaryshares(par1p)
TherightsattachingtotheordinarysharesaregovernedbytheCompany’sArticlesofAssociationandprevailing
legislation. There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding. Subject to any rights or restrictions
attachedtoanyordinaryshares,onashowofhands,everyshareholderpresentinpersonorbyproxy(orbeing
acorporationpresentbyadulyauthorisedrepresentative)hasonevote,andonapolleveryshareholderwho
ispresentinpersonorbyproxyhasonevoteforeveryordinaryshareheldbytheshareholder.Noshareholder
shallbeentitledtovoteatanygeneralmeetingorclassmeetinginrespectofanyordinarysharesheldbyhimif
anycallorothersumthenpayablebyhiminrespectofthatshareremainunpaid.Currently,allissuedordinary
sharesarefullypaid.Inaddition,nomembershallbeentitledtovoteifhefailedtoprovidetheCompanywith
information concerning interests in those ordinary shares required to be provided under the Companies Act
2006.VotesareexercisableatgeneralmeetingsoftheCompany.Thenoticeofageneralmeetingwillspecify
thedeadlineforappointingaproxyorproxiestovoteinrelationtoresolutionstobepassedatthatmeeting.
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ThetransferofordinarysharesisgovernedbythegeneralprovisionsoftheCompany’sArticlesofAssociationand
prevailinglegislation.Saveasdescribedherein,therearenorestrictionsonthetransferoftheordinarysharesother
than(i)assetoutintheArticlesofAssociation;(ii)certainrestrictionswhichmayfromtimetotimebeimposedby
lawsandregulations(forexample, insidertrading laws);and(iii) theCompany’ssharedealingruleswhichrequire
certainDirectors,officersandemployeesof theCompany toobtainapprovalprior todealing inordinaryshares.
TheBoardmay,initsabsolutediscretionandwithoutgivinganyreason,refusetoregisteranytransferofashare
(orrenunciationofarenounceableletterofallotment)saveforincertaincircumstancesspecifiedintheArticlesof
Association. Registration of a transfer of an uncertificated share may be refused in circumstances permitted or
requiredbytheUncertificatedSecuritiesRegulations(asdefinedintheCompany’sArticlesofAssociation).

Mergerreserve
TheMergerReservearoseintheGroupreconstructioninJanuary2002priortoitsflotation.

Sharebasedpaymentreserve
The Share Base Payment Reserve comprises the carrying value of the recognised expense under IFRS2 for
share options granted that are still exercisable. When options are exercised, forfeited or expire, a reserve
transferisperformedinordertomovetheexpenseintoRetainedEarnings.

Translationreserve
TheTranslationReservereflectstheexchangedifferencesfromretranslationoftheopeningnet investmentsin
overseassubsidiaries to theclosing rateand translationof the results for the year fromaverage rates to the
closingrate.

20 .  CONT iNgENT l iAb il iT iES

TheGrouphadnocontingentliabilitiesat31December2013or31December2012.

21 .  CApiTAl COmmiTmENTS

TheGrouphadnocapitalcommitmentsat31December2013or31December2012.

22 .  RElATEd pARTy TRANSACT iONS

(1)Commercialtransactions
ArisawaManufacturingCo.isarelatedpartyasitisasignificantshareholderanditsCEO,Dr.SanjiArisawa,is
amemberoftheCompany’sBoardofDirectors.Duringtheyear,theGrouplicensed3Dtechnologyvaluedat
$14,000(2012:$32,000)toArisawaCo.Theabovementionedtransactionstookplaceonanarm’s-lengthbasis.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued

(2)Financial
The following stock transactions occurred during the period. Details of all transactions can be found in the
relevantRNSatwww.ddd.com.

Date Name
Director/executive
position

Stock
Option
Grant

Exercise
Price

#of
Shares

Shares
sold

Avgprice
(ifsold)

Stock Option Exercises:

17Jan2013 WarrenLittlefield Non-execdirector Apr08 10p 200,000 150,000 23p

22Jan2013 JulienFlack CTO Apr08 10p 150,000 67,660 22.26p

28Jan2013 VictoriaStull CFO/Execdirector Dec09 13.9p 25,000 — N/A

8Apr2013 ChrisYewdall CEO/Execdirector Apr08 10p 250,000 — N/A

8Apr2013 NickBrigstocke Non-execdirector Apr08 10p 200,000 — N/A

12Apr2013 PaulKristensen Non-execchairman Apr08 10p 100,000 50,000* 14p*

12Apr2013 JulienFlack CTO Apr08 10p 250,000 154,009 16.3p

15Apr2013 HansSnook Non-execdirector Apr08 10p 200,000 — N/A

22Apr2013 VictoriaStull CFO/Execdirector Dec09 13.9p 50,000 — N/A

23Apr2013 ChrisYewdall CEO/Execdirector Apr08 10p 150,000 — N/A

23Apr2013 ChrisYewdall CEO/Execdirector Apr08 10p 400,000 **

* PaulKristensen’sexerciseon12April2013wascontingentonthesaleof50,000shareswhichwascompletedon12July
2013andtheallotmentandissuancewastransactedoncompletionofpayment.

** As part of the 23 April 2013 exercise, Chris Yewdall exercised the remaining 400,000 of his April 2008 share options
contingent on the sale of those shares into the market to assist with costs of the April 2008 option exercises and US
taxationon these transactions.The400,000shareswerenot soldwithin thepermissable timeperiod (90days)and the
optionshareswereneverissuedandlapsedasof22July2013.

Date Name
Director/executive
position

Purchase
Price

#of
Shares

Purchased
#of

Sharessold
Avgprice

(ifsold)

Open Market Stock Transactions:

17Jan2013 VictoriaStull CFO/Execdirector 26.5p 1,000 — N/A

3Oct2013 NicholasBrigstocke Non-execchairman 5.6875p 200,000 — N/A

22Nov2013 SanjiArisawa Non-execdirector 6.57p 100,000 — N/A

19Dec2013 ChrisYewdall CEO/Execdirector — — 200,000 6.875p

19Dec2013 ChrisYewdall(affiliate) AffiliateofCEO 6.875p 200,000 — N/A

23 .  EvENTS AfTER THE bAlANCE SHEET dATE

Operational:

TheGroupappointedIPNavigationGroupasitspatentadvisorinMarch2014toassistinlicensingtheGroup’s
extensivepatent library.Theobjective is tosecure license fees for theuseof theGroup’s internationalpatent
libraryinvarious3Dconsumerproductsandprofessionalservices.

The Group’s published regulatory announcements can be found on the Group’s website at
http://www.ddd.com/investors/rns-announcements/.

24 .  CONSOlidAT iON

ThesubsidiariesincludedintheconsolidatedaccountsarelistedinNote3oftheparentCompanyaccounts.
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WehaveauditedtheparentCompanyfinancialstatementsofDDDGroupplcfortheyearended31December
2013whichcomprisetheparentCompanybalancesheet,thestatementoftotalrecognisedgainsandlosses,
andtherelatednotes.Thefinancialreportingframeworkthathasbeenappliedintheirpreparationisapplicable
lawandUnitedKingdomAccountingStandards(UnitedKingdomGenerallyAcceptedAccountingPractice).

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with chapter 3 of part 16
of theCompaniesAct 2006.Our auditwork hasbeenundertaken so thatwemight state to theCompany’s
membersthosematterswearerequiredtostatetotheminanauditor’sreportandfornootherpurpose.Tothe
fullestextentpermittedbylaw,wedonotacceptorassumeresponsibilitytoanyoneotherthantheCompany
andtheCompany’smembersasabody,forourauditwork,forthisreport,orfortheopinionswehaveformed.

Respectiveresponsibilitiesofdirectorsandauditors
Asexplainedmorefully intheDirectors’ResponsibilitiesStatementsetoutonpages20-21,theDirectorsare
responsible for the preparation of the parent Company financial statements and for being satisfied that they
giveatrueandfairview.OurresponsibilityistoauditandexpressanopinionontheparentCompanyfinancial
statementsinaccordancewithapplicablelawandInternationalStandardsonAuditing(UKandIreland).Those
standardsrequireustocomplywiththeAuditingPracticesBoard’sEthicalStandardsforAuditors.

Scopeoftheauditofthefinancialstatements
Adescriptionofthescopeofanauditof financialstatements isprovidedontheFinancialReportingCouncil’s
websiteatwww.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/private.cfm.

Opiniononfinancialstatements
InouropiniontheparentCompanyfinancialstatements:

• giveatrueandfairviewofthestateoftheCompany’saffairsasat31December2013;

• havebeenproperlypreparedinaccordancewithUnitedKingdomGenerallyAcceptedAccountingPractice;and

• havebeenpreparedinaccordancewiththerequirementsoftheCompaniesAct2006.

Emphasisofmatter,goingconcern
InformingouropinionontheparentCompanyfinancialstatements,whichisnotmodified,wehaveconsidered
the adequacy of the disclosure made in Note 1 to the parent Company financial statements concerning the
Company’sabilitytocontinueasagoingconcern.

TheCompanyincurredanetlossof£2,483,000duringtheyearended31December2013.

Asexplained inNote1totheparentCompanyfinancialstatements,shouldmaterialadversechangesagainst
cash flow forecasts occur the Company is able to take mitigating actions to manage cash resources and
accessadditionalfundingfromstrategicsourcesifrequired.

Theseconditions,alongwiththeothermattersexplainedinNote1totheparentCompanyfinancialstatements,
indicate theexistenceofamaterialuncertaintywhichmaycastsignificantdoubtabout theCompany’sability
tocontinueasagoingconcern.TheparentCompanyfinancialstatementsdonotincludetheadjustmentsthat
wouldresultiftheCompanywasunabletocontinueasagoingconcern.

OpiniononothermatterprescribedbytheCompaniesAct2006
InouropiniontheinformationgivenintheStrategicReportandDirectors’Reportforthefinancialyearforwhich
thefinancialstatementsarepreparedisconsistentwiththeparentCompanyfinancialstatements.

Mattersonwhichwearerequiredtoreportbyexception
Wehavenothing to report in respectof the followingmatterswhere theCompaniesAct2006 requiresus to
reporttoyouif,inouropinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our
audithavenotbeenreceivedfrombranchesnotvisitedbyus;or

• �theparentCompanyfinancialstatementsarenotinagreementwiththeaccountingrecordsandreturns;or

• certaindisclosuresofdirectors’remunerationspecifiedbylawarenotmade;or

• wehavenotreceivedalltheinformationandexplanationswerequireforouraudit.

Othermatter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of DDD Group plc for the year ended
31December2013.Thatreportincludesanemphasisofmatter.

MarcSummers,BSc,FCA
SeniorStatutoryAuditor
forandonbehalfofGrantThorntonUKLLP
StatutoryAuditor,CharteredAccountants

London
14April2014
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pARENT COmpANy bAlANCE SHEET

Notes

31December
2013
£’000

31December
2012
£’000

FixedAssets

Investments 3 12,208 11,977

CurrentAssets

Debtors(£16,791,000fallingdueafteroneyear;2012:£18,393,000) 4 16,816 18,434

Cashatbankandathand 808 881

17,624 19,315

Creditors-amountsfallingduewithinoneyear 5 (105) (132)

NetCurrentAssets 17,519 19,183

NetAssets 29,727 31,160

CapitalandReserves

Calledupsharecapital 6 8,134 8,044

Sharepremiumaccount 8 11,244 10,557

Sharebasedpaymentreserves 8 1,129 937

Otherreserves 8 18,843 18,843

Profitandlossaccount 8 (9,623) (7,221)

Shareholders’Funds 29,727 31,160

ThefinancialstatementswereapprovedbytheboardofDirectorson14April2014andsignedonitsbehalfby:

ChristopherYewdall
ChiefExecutiveOfficer
Companynumber:4271085
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31December
2013
£’000

31December
2012
£’000

Lossforthefinancialyear (2,483) (4,820)

Unrealiseddistributionreceived — 18,843

Totalrecognisedgainsandlossesrelatingtotheyear (2,483) 14,023
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NOTES TO pARENT COmpANy ACCOUNTS

1 .  ACCOUNTiNg pOl iC iES

Accountingconvention

Thefinancialstatementswerepreparedunderthehistoricalcostconventionandinaccordancewithapplicable
United Kingdom accounting standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) up to and
including Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 28. A summary of the more important accounting policies,
whichhavebeenappliedconsistently, is setoutbelow.Theprincipal accountingpolicies represent themost
appropriateinaccordancewithFRS18.

GoingConcern
TheGroup’sbusinessactivities, togetherwith the factors likely toaffect its futuredevelopment,performance
andpositionaresetoutintheStrategicReportonpages2to11.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts up to 31 December 2016 which indicate the Company will
haveaccesstosufficientcash.Forecastrevenueincludesexistingcontractsandnewrevenuestreamsarising
fromcontractswhichareinthenegotiationphase;however,thereisuncertaintythatcontractnegotiationswill
befinalised.

If there are material adverse variances against these forecasts, the Company is able to institute measures
to takemitigatingactions tomanagecash resourcesandaccessadditional funding fromstrategic sources if
required.

The Directors have concluded that the combination of these circumstances represent a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Nevertheless after
makingenquiries,theDirectorshaveareasonableexpectationthattheCompanywillhaveaccesstoadequate
resources tocontinue inoperationalexistence for the foreseeable future.For these reasons, theycontinue to
adoptthegoingconcernbasisinpreparingtheannualreportandaccounts.

Investments
Investmentsheldasfixedassetsarestatedatthelowerofcostandnetrealisablevalue,lessprovisionforany
impairment. In theopinionof theDirectors, the valueof such investments isnot less than that shownat the
balancesheetdate.

Deferredtax
Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences where the transactions or events that give the parent
Company an obligation to pay more tax in the future, or a right to pay less tax in the future, have occurred
bythebalancesheetdate.Deferredtaxassetsarerecognisedwhenit ismorelikelythannotthattheywillbe
recovered.Deferredtaxismeasuredusingratesoftaxthathavebeenenactedorsubstantivelyenactedbythe
balancesheetdate.

Sharebasedpayments
Allsharebasedpaymentarrangementscurrentlygrantedarerecognisedinthefinancialstatements.Allgoods
andservicesreceivedinexchangeforthegrantofanyshare-basedpaymentaremeasuredattheirfairvalues.
Whereemployeesare rewardedusingsharebasedpayments, the fairvaluesof theirservicesaredetermined
indirectlybyreferencetothefairvalueof the instrumentgrantedtotheemployee.This fairvalue isappraised
atthegrantdateandexcludestheimpactofnon-marketvestingconditions(e.g.profitabilityandsalesgrowth
targets).

Allequitysettledsharebasedpaymentsareultimatelyrecognisedasanexpenseintheprofitandlossaccount
withacorrespondingcreditto‘sharebasedpaymentreserves’.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received, net of attributable transaction costs, are credited to
sharecapitaland,whereappropriate,sharepremium.
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Otherreserves
The Company received a distribution from Dynamic Digital Depth Inc., on the liquidation of this intermediary
holdingcompany,oftheintercompanyreceivablesheldbyDynamicDigitalDepthInc.Thereceiptwastreated
as an unrealised capital receipt for taxation purposes on which basis no taxation was payable or has been
providedforinthesefinancialstatements.

Foreignexchange
Non-Sterlingbasedassetand/orliabilitybalancesforthebalancesheetpresentedaretranslatedattheclosing
rateat thedateof thebalancesheetandtheresulting foreignexchangegain/loss ispresentedaspartof the
profitandlossaccount.

2 .  COmpANy pROf iT  ANd lOSS ACCOUNT

TheparentCompanyhastakenadvantageofsection408oftheCompaniesAct2006andhasnotincludedits
ownprofitandlossaccount inthesefinancialstatements.TheparentCompany’srecognisedlossfortheyear
ended31December2013was£2,483,000(2012:lossof£4,820,000).

3 .  f ixEd ASSET iNvESTmENTS

31December
2013
£000

31December
2012
£000

Investmentinsubsidiaryundertakings

Cost

Historicalcost 11,977 14,936

DissolutionofDDDInc. — (3,373)

AssignmentofSubsidiarysharecertificates — 48

Additions 231 366

Netbookvalue 12,208 11,977

The Company tests the carrying value of its investments in subsidiary undertakings, which are carried at
historical cost less impairment, and the related long term notes receivable from subsidiaries (Note 4) on an
annualbasisormorefrequentlyifmarketconditionsindicateapotentialimpairment.

Given that the market capitalisation of the Group is below the carrying value of the investment in subsidiary
undertakings balance and long term notes receivable from subsidiaries and also Shareholders’ Funds, the
CompanycarefullyassessedthecarryingvalueutilisingthediscountedcashflowforecastsoftheGroupunder
two varying scenarios (expected and conservative cases). Both scenarios include analysis of the existing
3D business as well as new business areas arising from the recently announced IP program and the latest
technologies described in the Strategic Report which will expand the market reach into the 2D consumer
marketplace.Thetimingandquantumofrevenues,profitandcashflowsfrombothofthenewbusinessareas
areinherentlylesscertainthanthosefromtheexistingbusiness.Managementhavebasedtheirassessmentof
cashflowsonthebestavailableinformationandtheywillrevisitthekeyunderlyingassumptions,estimatesand
judgementsateachreportingdate.

ThemodelsunderlyingthediscountedcashflowanalysiswereapprovedbymanagementinearlyMarch2014.
Thesecashflowshavebeendiscountedatariskadjustedpre-taxweightedaveragecostofcapitalof15.4%
witha3%terminalgrowth rate following thedetailed threeyearperiod (2014-2016).The resultingvaluations,
includingnewbusinessassumptions,supportcurrentcarryingvaluesandthereforeno impairment ismadeat
thistime.
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NOTES TO pARENT COmpANy ACCOUNTS continued

Interestinsubsidiaryundertakings

Nameofundertaking
Classof

shares
Percentage

held(%)
Countryof

incorporation Activities

Inoperationatyearend:

DynamicDigitalDepthUSA,Inc.
(DDDUSAInc.)

Ordinary 100 US Corporateheadquarters,
primarysalesand

marketingoffice,and
contentservices

DynamicDigitalDepthAustraliaPty.Ltd
(DDDAustralia)

Ordinary 100 Australia Productsupportand
administration

DynamicDigitalDepthResearchPty.Ltd
(DDDResearch)

Ordinary 100 Australia Softwareandhardware
developmentand

research

DDDIPVenturesLtd. Ordinary 100 BritishVirginIslands Intellectualproperty
administration

TheBoardcontinuestohaveareasonableexpectationthattheoperatingentitiesinwhichtheparentcompany
hasmadeinvestmentswillachieveprofitabilityintheforeseeablefuturesufficientenoughtosupportthecarrying
valueof the investment.As such, there is noprovision for impairmentof parentCompany investments as at
31December2013.

4.DEBTORS

2013
£000

2012
£000

Amountsfallingduewithinoneyear

Prepayments 25 41

25 41

Amountsfallingdueafteroneyear
Long-termnotesreceivablefromsubsidiaries

DDDUSAInc. 11,276 12,352

DDDAustralia 3,476 3,807

DDDResearch 2,039 2,234

16,791 18,393

TotalDebtorsbalance 16,816 18,434

TheloansmadebyDDDInc.thatwerereceivablefromsubsidiarieswereassignedtoDDDGroupplcasaresult
of theGroup’s verticalmergerof itsCanadian subsidiary,DDD Inc., on7September, 2012. These loansare
denominatedinCanadiandollarsandretranslatedtoPoundsSterlingateachbalancesheetdate.Theseloans
arenon-interestbearingandpayableuponrequest.Therewerenopaymentsmadeintheperiod,thebalance
change ispurelya resultof foreignexchange.SeeNote3 regarding theanalysisof thecarrying valueof the
subsidiarybalancesinconjunctionwiththeinvestmentinthesubsidiaries.

5.CREDITORS:AMOUNTSFALLINGDUEWITHINONEYEAR

2013
£000

2012
£000

Tradecreditors 54 40

PromissorynotepayabletoDDDBVIforequityinvestment — 16

Accruals 51 76

105 132
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6 .  SHARE CApiTAl

Nominal Premium

value netofcosts Total

Shares £’000 £’000 £’000

Deferredshares(par9p)

Inissue1January&31December2012
and31December2013 74,416,547 6,698 — 6,698

Ordinaryshares(par1p)

Inissue1January2012 134,192,146 1,342 10,516 11,858

Issuedoptionexercises1 436,666 4 41 45

Inissue31December2012 134,628,812 1,346 10,557 11,903

Issuedoptionexercises1 1,995,000 20 189 209

Shareplacing2 7,039,760 70 498 568

Inissue31December2013 143,663,572 1,436 11,244 12,680

Allshares

Inissue31December2013 218,080,119 8,134 11,244 19,378

Inissue31December2012 209,045,359 8,044 10,557 18,601

KeyMovementsintheShareCapitalandSharePremiumaccountsareasfollows:

1Ineachperiod,ordinaryshareswereissuedundertheCompany’sShareOptionPlan.

2On17September2013, theCompany raised£575,500beforeexpenses throughaplacingof7,039,760ordinaryshares
of1pennyeachinthecapitaloftheCompanyataplacingpriceof8.175pencepershare.InterDigitalmadethisstrategic
investmentatthesametimeasenteringintoajointtechnologydevelopmentagreementwithDDD.

Deferredshares(par9p)
Adescriptionofandrelevantrightsattachedtothedeferredsharesasofthedateofthisreportareassetout
inNote8oftheconsolidatedGroupfinancialstatements.

Ordinaryshares(par1p)
Adescriptionofandrelevantrightsattachedtotheordinarysharesasofthedateofthisreportareassetout
inNote19oftheconsolidatedGroupfinancialstatements.

7 .  SHARE bASEd pAymENTS

RefertoNote18intheGroupaccounts.SharebasedpaymentsrecognisedintheparentCompanyaccounts
relate to shareoptionsgranted to anyDirector of theparentCompany andany employeeof theCompany’s
subsidiaries.

TheparentCompanyrecognisedtotalexpensesof£272,000(2012:£463,000)relatedtoequity-settledshare
basedpaymenttransactionsduringtheyear.
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NOTES TO pARENT COmpANy ACCOUNTS continued

8 .  STATEmENT Of  mOvEmENT iN  SHAREHOldERS ’ fUNdS

Sharepremium
account

£000

Sharebased
payment

reserve
£000

Other
Reserve

£000

Profit
andloss
account

£000
Total
£000

At1January2012 10,516 491 (3,182) 7,825

Lossfortheyear — — (4,820) (4,820)

Sharebasedpayments–shareoptions — 463 — 463

Sharebasedpaymentreservetransfer — (17) 17 —

Shareissues 41 — — 41

OtherReserve(CanadaDissolution) — — 19,607 — 19,607

Exchangedifferences — — (764) 764 —

At31December2012 10,557 937 18,843 (7,221) 23,116

Lossfortheyear — — (2,483) (2,483)

Sharebasedpayments–shareoptions — 273 — 273

Sharebasedpaymentreservetransfer — (81) 81 —

Shareissues 687 — — 687

At31December2013 11,244 1,129 18,843 (9,623) 21,593

9 .  d iRECTORS’ REmUNERAT iON

2013 2012

£’000 £’000

Wagesandsalaries 185 178

SocialSecuritycontributions 16 9

Sharebasedpayments–shareoptions 162 228

363 415

Share based payments recognised in this note are solely share option expense related to any executive or
non-executivedirectorsof theparentCompanyandare a subsetof the total sharebasedpayment expense
referencedinNote18oftheGroupaccounts.AllGroupdirectorfeesarepaidbytheparentCompany.

10 .  pOST bAlANCE SHEET EvENTS

PleaserefertoNote23intheGroupaccounts.

11 .  RElATEd pARTy TRANSACT iONS

TheCompanyhastakenadvantageoftheexemptionsavailableunderFinancialReportingStandard8,“Related
PartyDisclosures”,nottodisclosetransactionswithitsparentandfellowsubsidiaryundertakings.

PleaserefertoNote22intheGroupaccountsforallexternaltransactions.
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